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- With 26 brands and
over 26,000 points
of sale, we can better
~ manage a challenging
retail environment,
offering compelling

style and superior
value wherever and
 whenever consumers
choose to shop.




Consolidated Financial Highlights

Liz Claiborne Inc. designs and markets an extensive range of fashion appare] and accessories appropriate to wear—
ing occasions ranging from casual to dressy. Although they offer a wide array of styles, all Liz Claiborne Inc. brands
share the common characteristics of innovative fashion and exceptionally high quality and value, Products are
manufactured to the Company’s specifications in the United States and abroad and are marketed through lead-
ing department and specialty stores and other channels in the United States, Canada, Europe, Asia, and Central
and South America.

All dollar amounts in thousands except per common share data 2001 2000 1699 1998 1997
NET SALES 3 3,443,522 3 3,104,141 3 2,806,548 $ 2,535,268 3 2,412,601
GROSS PROFIT 1,427,250 1,233,872 1,097,582 997,102 969,658
NET INCOME 192,057 184,595™ 192,442 169,377 184,644
WORKING CAPITAL 658,712 552,672 506,298 711,942 729,763
TOTAL ASSETS 1,951,255 1,512,159 1,411,801 1,392,791 1,305,285
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 1,056,161 834,285 902,169 981,110 921,627

PER COMMON SHARE DATA":

Basic Earnings 1.85" 173" 1.56 1.29" 1.33
Diluted Earnings 183 172" 1.56 1.29" 132
Book Volue at Year End 10.04 8.15 7.95 767 6.97
Dividends Paid 0.23 023 023 023 0.23
BASIC SHARES OUTSTANDING® 103,993,824 106,813,198 123,046,930 131,005,704 139,238,334
DILUTED SHARES OUTSTANDING® 105,051,035 107,494,886 123,439,182 131,693,552 140,382,230

2,535
2,807
3,104

NET SALES] [in millions of $) DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE'] |before

restruciuring charges and special invesiment gain)

619

{CASH TO STOCKHOLDERS ™| [in millions of $) (in milions of $)
cumulative cumiative

* Adjusted for 3 two-for-one stock split in the form of 2 100% stock dividend paysble on January 16, 2001 <o sharcholders of record as of December 31, 2001.

* Includes the afier tax effects of a restructuring charge of $9,632 ($15,050 pretax) or $.09 per common share in 2001, restructuring charges of $13,466 (821,041 pre-
%) of $.13 per common share and 3 special investment gain of $5,606 (§8,760 pretax) or $.05 per common share in 2000 and a restructuring charge of $17,100
(827,000 pretax) or $.13 per common shate in 1998.

~ Inchudes share purchases and dividends.

= Inchudes capital cxpenditures and in-store merchandise shops.

tiz Claiborne Inc. and Subsidiaries
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Paul R. Charron

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer




DEAR STOCKHOIDERS, ASSOCIATES, BUSINESS PARTNERS AND FRIENDS:

In the wake of a particularly challenging year, I feel fortunate to be able to report that

our Company performed well in 2001.

This success is a direct reflection of the character and skill of our management team,
our associates and our supplier partners. All pulled together as never before in the days
after September 11th. All reached out quickly to help each other, and others in need,

making extraordinary efforts to keep our business healthy.

Thanks to this hard work, coupled with the inherent soundness of our strategies, the
vear-end marked twenty-four consecutive quarters of sales growth and twenty-eight
consecutive quarters of growth in earnings-per-share. For the full year 2001, sales were
up 11.1 percent and diluted earnings-per-share {excluding the impact of a pre-tax
restructuring charge in 2001 and pre-tax restructuring charges and pre-tax investment

gains in 2000) increased 7.3 percent over those in the comparable 2000 period.

We are especially pleased by these results. The U.S. economy officially entered into
recession in March 2001, thereby confirming what those of us doing business in a
particularly demanding environment had known for some time. 2001 was a year during
which an overabundance of merchandise and increasingly value-sensitive consumers
put extraordinary pressure on margins. Moreover, intense competition from both
national brands and store brands made the ongoing battle for market share that much
tougher. Nevertheless, our Company achieved record results. This can be attributed

to many factors.

Strotegic Precision

For the most part, we executed our strategies with precision, focusing on core compe-
tencies in design, sourcing and brand management, while extending the power of
technology throughout the Company. We monitored key performance indicators aggres-
sively, using enhanced supply/demand balancing technology to keep our inventories in
check. Efforts to identify and then extend best practices within our collaborative culture

enabled us to both address expense cutting opportunities and increase productivity.

More than any other single factor, our multi-brand portfolio and multi-channel distri-
bution strategies enabled us to succeed under the challenging circumstances of 2001.

This ability to successfully manage diversity is, we feel, a real strength.




Our current portfolio of 26 brands spans most apparel and non-apparel categories,
reaching consumers regardless of age, gender, size, attitude, shopping or value preference.
Qur products run the full fashion gamut, from classic and traditional to modern and

contemporary, for every wearing occasion.

Our multi-channel distribution strategy makes the brands of Liz Claiborne Inc. available
at over 26,000 different retail locations throughout the world, including virtually all
upscale, mainstream, promotional and chain department stores, our own specialty and

outlet stores and E-commerce sites for Elisabeth, Lucky Brand and Mexx.

Consistent Execulion

Yet even the most thoughtfully conceived strategies depend upon successful implemen-
tation, and the results show that our execution was skillful and consistent. We continued
to strengthen and diversify our brand portfolio, sustaining our core department store
business while, at the same time, developing other retail distribution channels. Pretty
much across the board, the products we offered in 2001 were improved and more
responsive to consumer needs than were those of the year before. We realized important
benefits from our B2B Internet initiatives and broadened our use of inventory manage-
ment technology. We extended our common systems platform to recent acquisitions.
Our manufacturing, logistics and distribution operations sourced products advantageously
and shipped them consistently, relying on our substantial investments in technology.
While the days and weeks following the events of September 11th severely tested the
capabilities of our supply chain to flow product on a timely basis, our teams performed

flawlessly with all products delivered within required parameters.

International Growth

For us, consistent execution of a winning strategy includes identifying acquisitions
which support our diversification goals. Mexx Group, acquired m the second

quarter of 2001, enabled us to dramatically expand our international presence (taking
international sales on a pro-forma basis to 17 percent of our Company’s total, as opposed
to only 7 percent without the transaction). The Mexx transaction was immediately
accretive. Moreover, we were fortunate to retain an accomplished and committed Mexx

management team with philosophies which closely mirror those of Liz Claiborne Inc.

Based in the Netherlands, Mexx designs and markets branded fashion apparel and
accessories for modern urbanites, age 20 to 40, enhancing our presence in this important

consumer segment. Mexx merchandise 1s sold in more than 40 countries, including




the Asia Pacific region, the Middle East, Canada and especially Europe. As Mexx
continues to grow, we expect it will provide long-term opportunities to bring other
brands from Liz Claiborne Inc. to Europe and elsewhere around the world, as well

as to introduce Mexx products to the U.S. market.

Qur Brand Porifolio

While for the first time in our history the Liz Claiborne brand accounts for less than
50 percent of our total wholesale apparel volume, it remains the backbone of our
business. During the past year, as consumers looked to classic names as reassuring symbols
in an uncertain time, Liz Claiborne branded products more than held their own, with
our casual and non-apparel lines, in particular, performing well versus competition. At
the same time, it is important that we reach out to consumers with different attitudes
toward style and fashion and who cross-shop from one retail channel to another. We

accomplish this through a portfolio of compelling brands.

Our ability to reach out to new consumers was enhanced in 2001 by the enterprises
we acquired in 1999: Sigrid Olsen, Lucky Brand Dungarees and Laundry by Shelli Segal.
While maintaining their distinctiveness, we have integrated and added mass to these
promising businesses. Results for Lucky were particularly noteworthy, and this is rapidly
becoming a very substantial business. Sold across the retail spectrum, in specialty and
department stores, in our own stores and via E-commerce, Lucky Brand illustrates just
how well multiple distribution channels can support a compelling brand. In particular,
our Lucky Brand specialty stores have been a major success. In addition to the 25 stores

opened in 2001, we plan to add another 18 in 2002.

Among our licensed brands, DKNY® Jeans and Kenneth Cole New York showed
promise. DKNY® Jeans and Juniors, in particular, had the right product at the right
time and benefited from a surge in the popularity of denim.We also license many

of our own brands to outside manufacturers who bring specialized skills to categories
where we do not have a core competency. This adds substantially te our revenues,

extends each brand’s presenice in the market and allows us to focus on what we do best.

Our Special Markets brands also produced solid results, especially at Kohl’s, Mervyn’s
and }J.C. Penney. These brands offer moderately priced fashion to cost-conscious
consumers who shop in mass merchants, national chains and department stores. Looking

ahead, we are expanding both licensing and internal resources and creating lifestyle




offerings around each Special Markets brand to include accessories, jewelry, shoes,

fragrance, menswear, home furnishings and other appropriate products.

Paths for Additional Growth

Accessories have long been an important source of growth. In 2001, we made signifi-
cant strides in tapping the potential inherent in this operating unit. In particular,

Liz Claiborne Jewelry, which has outperformed the market for several years, sold very
strongly, thanks in part to innovative merchandising and enhanced in-store marketing.

And our Monet brand, acquired in 2000, considerably exceeded expectations.

Our Cosmetics division, which showed significant growth in a flat category, is another
avenue of potential. Existing brands, including Curve and Lucky You, performed well,
while our launch of Mambo, a new fragrance for men and women, was a hit. We will

continue to look for ways to expand this business.

Growth in the form of increased productivity will also come from accelerated efforts
to capture returns on the investments we have made over the last several years in
technology. Whether in design, manufacturing or logistics, technology provides the
increased flexibility we need in today’s unpredictable world, enabling us to deliver
more consumer-responsive products more quickly, Technology-based collaboration
with retail partners can enable us to rapidly determine what is and 1s not selling, then
make fast, mid-stream adjustments in response to changing consumer preference.
Further, we share our market intelligence broadly throughout the Company, some-
thing our collaborative culture has long encouraged, thereby helping us to better

capitalize on trends evident across our brand portfolio.

Understonding Our Consumers

‘We have been able to execute reasonably well across a broad and varied portfolio
because we pay especially close attention to the consumer. Unlike most other fashion
companies, Liz Cliborne Inc. commits significant resources to statistically valid research
each year in order to better understand consumers’ lives and changing tastes. The result
is commercial fashion, with emphasis on “commercial” Fashion, by definition, is con-
stantly changing but, regardless of the tastes of the moment, our products are eminently

saleable and responsive to the lifestyle needs of the intended consumer.




Locking Ahead

While the past year was successful, 2002 brings an element of uncertainty. We are chal-
lenged to accomplish even more in a less than robust, highly competitive environment.
We expect to improve our performance by precisely executing our growth strategies,
by prudently managing inventories to keep them lean, by relentlessly searching for ways

to reduce time, cost and complexity and by leveraging technology.

We will continue to strengthen our department store business, in part by seeking to
form deeper, technologically enhanced partnerships to unlock additional margin for
both ourselves and our partners. We will also increase our penetration of chains and
mass merchandisers by evolving our own internal processes to enhance the value of the
products we sell in these channels. But above all else, we will continue to pay close
attention to the consumer. If our products do not respond to her or his needs, we will

not flourish in a world where consumers have an abundance of choices.

A final word about our more than 11,000 associates. None of the success we achieved
in 2001 would have been possible without their collective talents and individual contri-
butions. I am especially proud of the people of Liz Claiborne Inc., who continually rise

to the occasion with creativity and dedication under the most challenging conditions.
The commitment of this company is to sustained excellence. We believe that our core
strategies and competencies will make it possible for us to keep growing in an ever-
changing and highly competitive marketplace. While there 1s uncertainty ahead, and
that is always likely to be the case, we will plan thoughtfully and be prepared to act

responsively to whatever comes our way. We appreciate your support.

Sincerely,

Pout R. Charron

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
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- enough. Whether for

wOomen, men, feens,
~ children or infants, we
- design our apparel
~ and accessories fo be
- commercially viable. ..
market-right anc
- eminently saleable.




OUR BRANDS
Claiborne

Curve
Dana Buchman
Womon
Elisabeth
laundry by Shelli Segal
Lliz Claiborne
Casual
Collection
Cosmetics
Fashion Accessories
Handbags
Jewelry
Lizgolf
Petites
Woman
Lucky Brand Dungarees
Lucky You Fragrance
Mambo
Mexx
Baby Mexx
Bags
Boys & Girls
Men
Mini Mexx
Sport
Women
XX by Mexx
Monet Group:
Marvella
Monet
Monet 2
Tritari
Sigrid Olsen
SO Blue
Sport
Woman
Special Markets:
Axcess
Crazy Horse
Fashion Accessories
Handbags
Jewelry

VWoman

Emma James
Woman
First Issue
Fashion Accessories
Handbags
Jewelry
Woman
Russ
Woman
Villager
Fashion Accessories
Handbags
Jewelry

Woman

[OUR LICENSED BRANDS

Candie’s® Fragrance

CITY DKNY®

DKNY® Active

DKINY® jeans

Kenneth Cole New York
Kenneth Cole New York Belts
Kenneth Cole New York Socks

Reaction Kenneth Cole

Unlisted

OUR LICENSES

Claiborne
Accessories
Boys
Casual Pants
Formalwear
Formalwear Furnishings
Neckwear
Optics
Quterwear
Sacks
Sunglasses
Tailored Clothing
Crazy Horse {Women}
Optics
Outerwear
Shoes
Sunglasses

Swimwear

Crazy Horse (Men)
Neckwear
Qulerwear
Sunglasses

Elisabeth
Dresses
Outerwear
Sleepwear
Swimwear

First {ssue
Optics
Ovuterwear
Shoes
Sunglasses

Lliz Claiborne
Dresses
Intimates
Kids
Optics
Quterwear
Shoes
Sleepwear
Slippers
Sunglasses
Swimwear

Lucky Brand Dungarees
Bathing Suits
leather

Mexx
Beach
Bed & Bath
Body
Eves
Fragrance
Jewels
Mini Mexx Home
Shoes
Socks
Time

Villager
Home
Shoes
Sleepwear
Sunglasses

Swimweor







Dana Buchman




Sigrid Olsen




Lucky Brand Dungarees

LUCKY BRAND

"ec. DUNGAREES ™V

DENIM STANDARD




Mexx VWomen




Mambo

uzclatborne

Come dance with me.
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DKNY Men

CITY DKNY

DKNY Jeans for Juniors

DKNY Women'’s Jeans



Emma James

Emma James Woman

Crazy Horse
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
The following table sets forth items in the Consolidated Statements of Income of Liz Cliborne Inc. and its wholly-

owned and majority-owned subsidiaries (the “Company”) as a percent of net sales and the percentage change of those
itemns as compared to the prior year,

FISCAL YEARS PERCENT OF SALEs] [YEAR TO YEAR % CHANGE |

2001 2000 1999 2001 v5.2000 2000 vs.3999

NET SALES 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 11.1% 10.6%
Cost of goods sold 58.6 60.3 60.9 8.1 9.4
GROSS PROFIT 41.4 39.7 39.1 15.7 124
Selling, general and adminisirative expenses 313 29.3 28.4 8.8 14.0
Restructuring charges 0.5 0.7 — (28.5) —
OPERATING INCOME 96 9.8 107 9.2 13
Other {expense) income—net ©.1) 0.2 — — —
Interest {expense) income~net ©.8) ©.7) 0.1 28.3 —
INCOME BEFORE PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES 87 9.3 10.7 4.0 (4.4)
Provision for income faxes 31 33 3.9 4.0 4.9)
NET INCOME 5.6 5.9 6.9 4.0 4.1}

We operate the following business segments: Wholesale Apparel, Wholesale Non-Apparel and Retail. The Wholesale
Apparel segment consists of women’s and men’s apparel designed and marketed worldwide under various trademarks
owned or licensed by the Company; this segment includes our career (COLLECTION), casual (LIZSPORT, LIZWEAR. and
LIZ & COJ), bridge (DANA BUCHMAN), large size (ELISABETH), men’s (CLAIBORNE), moderate priced special markets
(AXCESS, CRAZY HORSE, EMMA JAMES, FIRST ISSUE, RUSS and VILLAGER), specialty apparel (SIGRID OLSEN), pre-
mium denim (LUCKY BRAND DUNGAREES) and contemnporary sportswear and dress (LAUNDRY) businesses, as well as
our licensed DKNY® JEANS, DKNY* ACTIVE, and CITY DKNY" businesses and our licensed KENNETH COLE NEW YORK
and REACTION KENNETH COLE businesses. The Wholesale Apparel segment also includes wholesale sales of women’s,
men’s and children’s apparel designed and marketed in Europe, Canada, the Asia-Pacific Region and the Middle East
under the MEXX brand names. The Wholesale Non-Apparel segment consists of accessories, jewelry and cosmetics
designed and marketed worldwide under certain of those and other owned or lcensed trademarks, including our
MONET and TRIFARI labels. The Retail segrment operates specialty retail, outlet and concession stores worldwide that sell
most of these apparel and non-apparel products to the public through our 197 specialty retail stores, 211 outlet stores, and
452 concession stores. As a result of our recent acquisition of Mexx Group B.V. (“MEXX"), we are also segmenting our
results on a geographic basis between Domestic (wholesale customers and Company retail operations comprised of spe-
cialty retail and outlet stores based in the United States) and International (wholesale customers and Company specialty
retail and outlet stores and concession stores based outside of the United States). All data and discussion with respect to
our specific segments included within this “Management’s Discussion and Analysis” is presented before applicable inter-
company eliminations. Please refer to Note 19 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

On May 23, 2001, the Company completed its acquisition of all the outstanding capital stock of MEXX, a privately
held fashion apparel company, incorporated and existing under the laws of the Netherlands. MEXX designs and markets a
wide range of merchandise for women, men and children under the MEXX brand name. MEXX’ products are sold via
wholesale and retail formats in more than 40 countries in Europe, the Asia-Pacific region, Canada and the Middle East,
with MEXX’s core markets being the Benelux and Germanic regions. MEXX products, which are in the mid-price range,
are targeted at the 20-40 year old modern, urban consumer.

MEXX’s wholesale business, which accounted for approximately 71% of MEXX's total net sales for each of fiscal years
2001 and 2000, consists of sales to approximately 6,000 independent retail stores, 1,100 department store doors and 75
free standing MEXX franchise stores. MEXX's retail business, which accounted for approximately 29% of MEXX’s total net o
sales in fiscal years 2001 and 2000, consists of approximately 65 company owned and operated retail stores, 110 conces- i ¢
sion shop-in-shop stores (where the space is owned and operated by the department store while MEXX owns the inven- ‘
tory) and 35 high street concession stores {(where the store is leased and operated by the partner while MEXX owns the
inventory). In addition, MEXX operates approximately 18 outlet stores. MEXX also has licensed a variety of its trademarks
for use on a number of non-apparel items, including fragrances, shoes, handbags, costume jewelry and watches.

32 liz Cloiborne Inc. and Subsidiaries




Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

2001 vS$. 2000

Qur net sales for 2001 were $3.45 billion, an increase of 11.1%, compared to $3.10 billion in 2000 (both periods
include 52 weeks). This increase reflected a 6.8% increase in our Wholesale Apparel segment to $2.54 billion, an increase
of 17.3% in Wholesale Non-Apparel to $496.1 million, and an increase in Retail of 26.5% to $615.7 million. Our
International net sales increased by 250.0% to $417.2 million, and our Domestic net sales increased by 1.6% to $3.03
billion. Our net sales for 2001 and 2000 were not materially impacted by foreign currency fluctuations.

The increase in net sales of our Wholesale Apparel segment primarily reflected the inclusion of sales of our MEXX busi-
ness and our licensed CITY DKNY* business, and the inclusion of a full year of sales of our licensed KENNETH COLE
NEW YORK Women’s apparel line, as well as sales increases in our Special Markets and LUCKY BRAND DUNGAREES
businesses, due in each case to higher unit volume which in certain of our Special Markets brands were partially offset by
lower unit selling prices, our DKNY* JEANS Women's business due to higher unit volume due primarily to higher
demand in both our Missy and Junior businesses and higher average unit selling prices due to a decrease in retailer support,
and our SIGRID OLSEN and DANA BUCHMAN businesses, due in each case to higher average unit selling prices reflecting
increased demand and decreased retailer support. These increases were partially offset by sales declines in our Casual, ELIS-
ABETH and LAUNDRY businesses due in each case to planned lower unit volume and lower average unit selling prices.
Our Career business and, to a lesser extent, our Menswear business, also declined due to lower unit volume and average
unit selling prices as a result of weakness in demand.

The increase in our Wholesale Non-Apparel segment was primarily due to the significant net sales increases in our
Jewelry business, due to the inclusion of a full year of sales from our MONET business acquired in July 2000, and in out
Cosmetics business, due to the launch of our MAMBO fragrance in August 2001, as well as a slight sales increase in our
Handbags business, principally reflecting higher unit volume. These gains were partially offset by a slight decline in our
Fashion Accessories business due to lower unit volume.

The increase in net sales of our Retail segment principally reflected increases in our QOutlet store sales, primarily due to
33 additional stores (including 18 MEXX stores) on a period-to-period basis (we ended the year with 211 Outlet stores),
and in our Specialty Retail Store sales, primarily due to 25 new LUCKY BRAND DUNGAREES stores, the inclusion of 65
MEXX stores on a period-to-period basis (we ended the year with a total of 197 Specialty Retail stores), as well as a
LUCKY BRAND DUNGAREES comparable store sales increase. The increase in net sales also reflected the inclusion of 35
MEXX high street concession stores and 110 MEXX concession shop-in-shop stores (we ended the year with a total of
452 concession stores). These increases were partially offset by a low single-digit comparable store sales decrease in our
Qutlet stores and a low single-digit comparable store sales decrease in the balance of our Specialty Retail stores.

The increase in net sales of our Domestic segment was primarily due to increases in our Wholesale Non-Apparel seg-
ment, resulting from the inclusion of a full year’s sales from our MONET business, and our Retail segment, due to an
additional 33 Oudet and 25 LUCKY BRAND DUNGAREES stores partially offset by a slight decrease in our Wholesale
Apparel segment. Our International segment increase was due primarily to the inclusion of sales of our recently
acquired MEXX business and the inclusion of a full year of sales of our MONET businesses (acquired in July 2000).

Gross profit dollars increased $193.4 million, or 15.7%, in 2001 over 2000. Gross profit as a percent of sales increased to
41.4% in 2001 from 39.7% in 2000 due to the increased penetraton of our relatively higher-margin Wholesale Non-
Apparel segment, primarily due to the inclusion of a full year’s sales from our MONET business and the launch of our
MAMBO fragrance, as well as the increased penetration of our relatively higher-margin Retail segment, driven by the
inclusion of the MEXX stores and the opening of additonal stores. The increase in the gross profit rate also reflected sig-
nificantly lower unit sourcing costs as a result of the continued consolidation and optimization of our worldwide supplier
base, combined with the continued improvement in the matching of our production orders with our customer orders
through the use of systems implemented in late 1999 and revamped business processes. The Company also benefited from
the inclusion of MEXX, which runs at a relatively higher gross margin rate than the Company average, and higher mar-
gins realized in our DKNY* JEANS Women's, DANA BUCHMAN and SIGRID OLSEN businesses. These increases were par-
tially offset by lower gross margins in our Casual, Career and CRAZY HORSE Men'’s businesses due, in each case,
primarily to the liquidation of excess inventories.

Selling, general and administrative expenses ("SG&A™), before our restructuring charges (see Note 12 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statemnents), increased $171.3 mullion, or 18.8%, in 2001 over 2000. These expenses as a percent of
net sales increased to 31.3% in 2001 from 29.3% in 2000, principally reflecting the increased penetration of our relatively
higher cost Wholesale Non-Apparel segment, which experienced higher marketing costs in our Cosmetics business asso-
ciated with the launch of cur MAMBO brand and relatively higher SG&A rates in our recently acquired MONET business.
Dollar and percentage increases in SG&A also reflect our recently acquired MEXX business, which runs at a relatively
higher SG&A rate than the Company average. Additionally, we experienced increases in our Retail segment due to the
opening of new stores and the inclusion of our recently acquired MEXX stores. Lower sales in our relatively lower-cost
Casual, Career and ELISABETH Wholesale Apparel businesses also conuibuted to the increase. Addidonally, the Company
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incurred higher compensation expenses as a result of the vesting of certain incentive equity instruments previously
granted under the Company’s stock incentive plan, as well as goodwill amortization generated by our recent acquisiions.

In December 2001, the Company recorded a net restructuring charge of $15.1 million (pretax), representing a charge
of $19.0 million, which consisted of approximately $4.6 million for the closure of seven Specialty Retail stores, due to a
shift to a vertical format for one of our brands which requires posidoning in different locations and the elimination of
our large “world” store concept, and five Outlet stores, due to the elimination of two of our branded store formats; $3.5
million for the closure of four of our division offices; $3.3 million associated with the strategic closure of two specific
facilities; and $7.6 million in severance related costs associated with the elimination of approximately 600 jobs, offset by
the $3.9 million deemed no longer necessary of the Company's previous restructuring liability originally recorded in
December 2000. The 2007 restructuring charge reduced net income by $9.6 million (after tax), or $0.09 per common
share. The Company anticipates annual savings associated with this restructuring to be between $15-$18 million. These
restructuring activities are expected to be substantially completed by December 2002. In September 2000, we recorded a
net restructuring charge of $5.4 million (pretax), representing a charge of $6.5 million, principally to cover the closure of
eight under-performing Specialty Retail stores in formats that no longer fit into our retail strategy, the closure of one of
our recently acquired divisional offices, and severance related costs, offset by the §1.1 million deemed no longer necessary
of the Company’s restructuring liability originally recorded in December 1998. In December 2000, we recorded a
restructuring charge of $15.6 million (pretax) to further maximize business segment synergies. This charge consisted of
$10.6 million for operating and administrative costs associated with the elimination of 270 jobs and $5.0 million for
real estate consolidations. Significant items included in the charge are estimated contract termination costs, severance and
related benefits for staff reductions, esimated occupancy costs and asset writedowns. The 2000 restructuring charges
reduced net income by $13.5 million, or $0.13 per common share. The Company anticipates annual savings associated
with the 2000 restructuring charges to be between $13-$16 million.

As a result of the factors described above, operating income, before the current year pre-tax restructuring charge of
$15.1 million and the prior year pre-tax restructuring charges of $21.0 million, increased $22.0 million, or 6.8%, to
$346.8 million in 2001. Operating income (before restructuring charges) as a percent of sales decreased to 10.1% in 2001
compared to 10.5% in 2000, due to the inclusion of MEXX, which runs at an operating profit margin lower than the
Company average. Segment operating profit in our Wholesale Apparel segment increased $1.9 million to $288.9 million
(11.4% of sales) in 2001 compared to $287.0 million (12.1% of sales) in 2000, principally reflecting increased profit dollars
in our DKNY* JEANS Women's, DANA BUCHMAN, SIGRID OLSEN and Special Markets businesses and the inclusion of
the profits from our recently acquired MEXX business, partially offset by reduced sales and gross profits in our Casual,
Career and LAUNDRY businesses. Operating profit in our Wholesale Non-Apparel segment increased $12.6 million to
$46.2 million (9.3% of sales) in 2001 compared to $33.6 million (7.5% of sales) in 2000, primarily due to the inclusion of
a full year of profits from our MONET business and, to a lesser extent, the launch of our MAMBO fragrance and increased
profit dollars in our Handbags business, partially offset by reduced profits in our Fashion Accessories business. Segment
operating profit in our Retail segment increased $7.5 million to $70.3 million (11.4% of sales) in 2001 compared to
$62.8 million {12.9% of sales) in 2000, principally reflecting the inclusion of the profits from the Retail stores of our
recently acquired MEXX business, an increase in our Specialty Retail store profits due to higher gross margins overall, and
25 new LUCKY BRAND DUNGAREES stores on a period-to-period basis, partially offset by higher operating expenses in
our Qutlet store business. Including the impact of the current year and prior year restructuring charges, operating income
increased $28.0 million, or 9.2% in 2001 compared to 2000, and decreased to 9.6% of sales in 2001 from 9.8% in 2000.
Segment operating income in our Domestic segment increased primarily due to an increase in our Wholesale Non-
Apparel segment resulting from the inclusion of profits from our MONET: business and increased sales and gross profit
rates in our Cosmetics business. Segment operating income in our International segment increased primarily due to the
inclusion of our recently acquired MEXX business.

Net other expense in 2001 was $3.5 million, comprised of minority interest and other non-operating expenses, com-
pared to net other income of $6.7 milkion in 2000. Last year’s other income included a special investment gain of $8.8
million related to our sale of marketable equity securities, net of associated expenses, partally offset by minority interest
and other non-operating expenses.

Net interest expense in 2001 was $28.1 million compared to $21.9 million in 2000. This increase of $6.2 million repre-
sents the incremental interest cost on the debt incurred to finance our strategic initiatives including costs associated with
our recently acquired businesses, capital expenditures (primarily related to the technological upgrading of our distribution
facilides and information systems) and in-store merchandise shop expenditures.

The provision for income taxes increased $4.2 million in 2001 and decreased as a percent of net sales to 3.1% in 2001
from 3.3% in 2000, primarily reflecting a higher pretax income for 2001 as compared to 2000. Our 2001 effective
income tax rate remained unchanged from 2000 at 36.0%.

Due to the factors described above, net income (excluding the effect of this year’s after-tax restructuring charge of $9.6
million and last years after-tax restructuring charges of $13.5 million and an after-tax special investment gain of $5.6 mil-
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lion) increased $9.2 million to $201.7 million in 2001 and declined as a percent of net sales to 5.8% in 2001 from 6.2% in
2000. Net income (including this vear’s restructuring charge and last year’s restructuring charges and special investment
gain) increased $7.5 million in 2001 to $192.1 million from $184.6 million and declined as a percent of net sales to 5.6%
in 2001 from 5.9% in 2000. Diluted earnings per share (“EPS”) (adjusted for a two-for-one stock split in the form of a
one hundred percent stock dividend payable on January 16, 2002 to shareholders of record as of December 31, 2001 (the
“stock dividend”)), excluding this year’s restructuring charge and last year’s restructuring charges and special investment
gain, increased 7.3% to $1.92 in 2001 from $1.79 in 2000, reflecting higher net income and a lower number of average
outstanding common shares and share equivalents in 2001. Diluted EPS, including the restructuring charges and special
investrnent gain was $1.83 in 2001 compared to $1.72 in 2000. Our average diluted shares outstanding declined by 2.4
million in 2001 on a period-to-period basis, to 105.1 million, as a result of our stock repurchase program. We purchased
155,000 shares during 2001 for $2.9 million and 12.3 million shares during 2000 for $247.7 million.

2000 VS, 1999

Our net sales for 2000 were $3.10 billion, an increase of 10.6%, compared to $2.81 billion in 1999 (both periods include
52 weeks). This increase reflected an 8.1% increase in our Wholesale Apparel segment to $2.37 billion, an increase of
24.0% in Wholesale Non-Apparel to $423.0 million, and an increase in Retail of 9.3% to $486.5 million. Our
International net sales increased by 13.2% (to $119.2 million), due primarily to the inclusion of sales of our MONET busi-
ness acquired in July 2000, and our Domestic net sales increased by 10.5% (to $2.98 billion).

The increase in net sales of our Wholesale Apparel segment primarily reflected continued strength in our Special
Markets business due to higher unit volume and higher net average unit selling prices, and the inclusion of a full years
sales of our SIGRID OLSEN, LUCKY BRAND DUNGAREES and LAUNDRY businesses, all acquired in 1999 (hereinafter
referred to as our “1999 acquisitions”), our CRAZY HORSE Men’s apparel line (launched in March 2000), and our
licensed KENNETH COLE NEW YORK women’s apparel line (faunched in August 2000), which together accounted for
$162 million, or 54%, of our 2000 total net sales increase. The increase also reflected sales increases in our CLAIBORNE
men’s business due to higher unit volume partially offset by lower net average unit selling prices. These gains were par-
dally offset by sales decreases resulting from the licensing of our Dress business in February 2000; sales declines in our
DANA BUCHMAN business due to lower net average unit selling prices reflecting increased retailer support partially offset
by slightly higher unit volume; and slight sales declines in our Casual business due to lower unit volume, as well as sales
declines in our Career business due to lower unit volume and lower net average unit selling prices.

The increase in our Wholesale Non-Apparel segment was due to significant net sales increases in our Cosmetics busi-
ness, due primarily to the inclusion of sales for a full year of our licensed CANDIE'S" fragrance, as well as the launch of our
LUCKY YOU fragrance in August 2000. The increase also reflected gains in our Jewelry business, due primarily to the
inclusion of the sales of our MONET business which we acquired in July 2000. We also experienced modest gains in our
Handbags business due to higher unit volume pardally offset by lower net average unit selling prices. These gains were
partially offset by a decline in our Fashion Accessories business due primarily to lower net average unit selling prices par-
tally offset by higher unit volume.

The increase in net sales of our Retail segment reflected increased QOutlet store sales, primarily due to an increase (net
after store closings) of 20 stores in the year partially offset by a low single-digit comparable store sales decrease. Our
Specialty Retail store sales increased slighdy, due to an increase (net after store closings) of 14 stores, with a significant
increase due to the inclusion of the sales of 17 additional LUCKY BRAND DUNGAREES stores, offset by a low single-digit
decline in comparable store sales in the balance of our Specialty Retall stores. The decline in comparable store sales in
our Qudet and Specialty Retail stores reflects the challenging retail apparel environment and the specialty stores” heavy
reliance on better-priced women'’s apparel.

The increase in our Domestic segment net sales for 2000 reflected the inclusion of a full year’s sales of our 1999 acqui-
sitions. Qur International segment increased due primarily to the inclusion of sales of our MONET business acquired in
July 2000.

Gross profit dollars increased $136.3 million, or 12.4%, in 2000 over 1999. Gross profit margins increased to 39.7%
in 2000, from 39.1% in 1999. This increase in gross profit rate reflected lower initial unit costs as a result of lower cost
global sourcing, reflecting continued consolidation, configuration and certification of our supplier base, combined with
our improved matching of production orders with customer orders at the SKU level through the use of new systems
and revamped business processes implemented in late 1999. These processes also enabled us to better manage our
inventories and continue to improve margins on the sale of excess inventories. Qur gross profit rate also benefited
from the licensing of our lower margin Dress business and the purchase of the higher margin MONET business, as well
as increased penetration of our 1999 acquisitions, which generally run at relatively higher gross margin rates than the
Company average, These increases were partially offset by increased financial support paid to our retail customers
across our better-priced appare] businesses, significantly lower margins in our DKNY* JEANS Women’s business, and
lower margins within, and increased penetraton of, our Special Markets business, which runs at a lower gross profit
rate than the Company average.
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SG&A, before our 2000 restructuring charges (see Note 12 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements),
increased $111.3 million, or 14.0%, in 2000 over 1999. These expenses, before the 2000 restructuring charges, increased
t0 29.3% of net sales in 2000 from 28.4% in 1999. These results principally reflect relatively higher SG&A rates in our
1999 acquisitions and our MONET business, the planned dilution from the start-up costs of the new KENNETH COLE
and CITY DKNY* licenses, and the planned increase in distribution costs resuldng from the start-up of our new auto-
mated facility constructed in Mt. Pocono, PA, as well as the increase in depreciadon and amortization of leasehold
improvements at our New York offices and the significant investment over the past several years in the technological
upgrading of our distribution facilities and information systems. The reduced sales penetration of our relatively lower cost
Casual apparel business also contributed to the rate increase. These factors were partially offset by increased penetration of
our Special Markets business, which is supported by relatively lower SG&A levels.

In September 2000, we recorded a net restructuring charge of $5.4 million (pretax), and in December 2000, we
recorded a restructuring charge of $15.6 million (pretax). The 2000 restructuring charges reduced net income by $13.5
million (after tax), or $0.13 per diluted common share,

As a result of the factors described above, operating income, before the impact of the 2000 reswructuring charges of
$21.0 million, increased $25.0 million, or 8.3%, to $324.7 million, and operating income as a percent of sales decreased to
10.5%, compared to 10.7% in 1999. Segment operating income in our Wholesale Apparel segment increased to $287.0
million (12.1% of sales) in 2000 compared to $276.7 million (12.6% of sales} in 1999, primarily due to the inclusion of a
full year’s profits from our 1999 acquisittions and increased sales in our Special Markets business. Segment operating
income in our Wholesale Non-Apparel segment increased to $33.6 million (7.9% of sales) in 2000 compared to $25.9
million (7.6% of sales) in 1999, primarily due to the inclusion of the profits from our MONET business and increased sales
and gross profit rates in our Cosmetics business. Segment operating income in our Retail segment increased to $62.8 mil-
lion (12.9% of sales) in 2000 compared to $55.4 million (12.4% of sales) in 1999, primarily due to the opening of new
stores and the inclusion of a full year’s profits from the stores of our 1999 acquisitions. Including the impact of the 2000
restructuring charges, operating income increased $3.9 million, or 1.3%, in 2000 compared 10 1999, and decreased to
9.8% of sales in 2000 from 10.7% in 1999. Segment operating income in our Domestic segment increased primarily due
to inclusion of a full year’s profits of our 1999 acquisitions. Segment operating income in our International segment
increased primarily due to increases in our European Retail profits.

Other income, net in 2000 was $6.7 million compared to other expense, net of $1.0 million in 1999.This year’s other
income includes a special investment gain of $8.8 million related to our sale of marketable equity securides, net of associ-
ated expenses, partially offset by minority interest and other non-operating expenses.

Net interest expense for 2000 was $21.9 million compared to interest income of $2.8 million in 1999. This $24.7
million change reflects higher net interest costs incurred to finance our strategic inidatives including the repurchase of
common stock, capital expenditures (primarily related to the technological upgrading of our distribution facilities and
information systems), in-store merchandise shop expenditures and costs associated with our 1999 acquisitions.

The provision for income taxes decreased $5.3 million in 2000 and decreased as a percent to sales to 3.3% in 2000
from 3.9% in 1999, primarily reflecting a lower pretax income and a lower effective tax rate of 36.0% for 2000 as com-
pared to 36.2% in 1999.

Due to the factors described above, 2000 net income before the impact of the 2000 restructuring charges and special
investment gain was virtually flat against 1999 and decreased as a percentage of sales to 6.2% from 6.9% in 1999.
Including the impact of the 2000 restructuring charges and special investment gain, 2000 net income was $7.8 million
lower than in 1999, and decreased as a percentage of net sales to 5.9% in 2000. Diluted EPS (adjusted for the stock divi-
dend), excluding the 2000 restructuring charges and special investment gain, increased 14.7% to $1.79 in 2000. Diluted
EPS, including the restructuring charges and special investment gain, increased 9.9% to $1.72 in 2000 from $1.56 in 1999.
Diluted EPS reflected a lower number of average outstanding common shares and share equivalents in 2000 as a result of
our repurchase of approximately 12.3 million shares in 2000 for $247.7 million.

FORWARD QUTLOOK

The economic and retail environments contanue to be uncertain and challenging. Accordingly, we are proceeding pru-
dently and conservatively in planning our business going forward. For fiscal 2002, current visibility and prudent business
management indicates that we forecast a sales increase of 4-6% and diluted EPS in the range of $2.08-$2.13, which
reflects the adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS™) No.142,“Accounting for Goodwill and
Other Intangibles.” The diluted EPS accretion in 2002 as a result of the adoption of SFAS No. 142 is projected to be $0.09.
For the first quarter of 2002, we are optimistic that we can achieve a sales increase of 5-7% and diluted EPS in the range
of $0.43-80.46. For the second quarter of 2002, we are optimistic that we can achieve 2 sales increase of 5-7% and EPS
in the range of $0.32-80.34. Refer to “PART Il - ITEM 5. STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING DISCLO-
SURE” for a discussion of the risks and uncertainties relating to the foregoing forward-looking statements.
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FINANCIAL POSITION, CAPITAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

Our primary ongoing cash requirements are to fund growth in working capital (primarily accounts receivable and inven-
tory) to support projected increased sales, investment in the technological upgrading of our distribution centers and
information systems and other expenditures related to retail store expansion, in-store merchandise shops and normal
maintenance activities. In 2001 and 2000, we also required cash to fund our acquisition program and in 2000, we also
required cash to fund our ongoing stock repurchase program. Sources of liquidity to fund ongoing cash requirements
include cash flows from operations, cash and cash equivalents, securities on hand and bank lines of credit; in 2001, we
issued Euro-denominated bonds (the “Eurobonds™) to fund our acquisition of MEXX.

2001 vS. 2000

We ended 2001 with $160.6 million in cash and marketable securites, compared to $54.6 million at the end of 2000, and
$387.3 million of debt compared to $269.2 million of debt cutstanding at the end of 2000. This $12.1 million change in
our cash and debt posidon over the last twelve months is primarily ateributable to our expenditure of $274.1 million, net
of cash acquired, for purchase price payments in connection with the acquisitions of MEXX and MONET, $107.0 million
for capital expenditures (primarily related to the technological upgrading of our distribution facilities and information
systems) and in-store merchandise shop expenditures and $2.9 million for the repurchase of common stock, offset by
$309.6 million in proceeds from the Eurobonds and the reclassification of $26.3 million of the Company’s ownership of
Kenneth Cole Productions, Inc. Class A stock (see Note 4 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for information
regarding this investment). Our borrowings under the commercial paper program peaked at $449.7 million during the
year; at December 29, 2001, our borrowings under the program were $77.7 mullion.

Net cash provided by operating activities was $329.2 million in 2001, compared to $268.0 million in 2000. This $61.2
million change in cash flow was primarily due to $24.5 million of higher depreciation expense in 2001 and cash generated
from a $4.8 million decrease in net working capital in 2001 compared to a $27.5 million use of cash for working capital in
2000, driven primarily by year over year changes in the accounts receivable, inventory and accrued expense balances.

Accounts receivable increased $94.4 million, or 35.3%, at year end 2001 compared to year end 2000. This increase pri-
marily reflected the assumption of the accounts receivable of our recently acquired MEXX business, which accounted for
approximately 62% of the increase.

Inventories increased $8.1 million, or 1.7%, at year end 2001 compared to 2000 primarily due to our recently acquired
MEXX business. Excluding the inventories of MEXX, our inventories were down 11.7%.The majority of this decrease was
driven by improved processes and procedures put in place during the second half of 2001 to help adjust the flow of
replenishment product and seasonal essential programs into our warehouses. Qur average inventory turnover rate
decreased to 4.0 times (4.1 times excluding MEXX) in 2001 from 4.3 dmes in 2000. The Company continues to take a
conservative approach to inventory management in 2002.

Net cash used in investing activities was $384.7 million in 2001, compared to $147.5 million in 2000. The 2001 net
cash used primarily reflected purchase price payments of $274.1, net of cash acquired, million in connection with our
acquisition of the MEXX business, along with capital and in-store merchandise shop expenditures of $107.0 million, com-
pared to 2000 capital and in-store merchandise shop expenditures of $88.1 million and purchase price payments of $58.9
million in connection with the acquisitions of our MONET, LAUNDRY, LUCKY BRAND DUNGAREES, SIGRID OLSEN
and licensed KENNETH COLE businesses.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $131.1 million in 2001, compared to $99.4 million vsed in financing
activities in 2000. The $230.5 million year over year increase primarily reflected the issuance of $309.6 million of
Eurobonds to finance the May 2001 purchase of MEXX, a decrease of $244.8 million expended for stock purchases and
an increase in net proceeds from the exercise of stock options of $§20.0 million, partially offset by a net repayment under
our commercial paper program of $191.5 million during 2001 compared to net borrowings of $153.1 million in 2000.

Qur anticipated capital expenditures for 2002 approximate $76 million. These expenditures consist primarily of in-store
merchandise shops, the continued technological upgrading and expansion of our management information systems and
distribution facilities (including certain building and equipment expenditures} and the planned opening of an additonal
total of 48 stores. Capital expenditures and working capital cash needs will be financed with net cash provided by operat-
ing activities and our revolving credit, trade letter of credit and other credit facilities.
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The following table summarizes as of December 29, 2001 the Company’s contractual cash obligations by future period
(please refer to Notes 2,3 and 9 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements):

’EYMENTS DUE BY PERIOD}
Contractual cash obligations Less than -3 4-5 Alfter 5
{in thousands) | year yeors vears yeors Total
Operating leases $ 97569 5173174 §136,758 $296,780 $ 704281
Purchase commitments 506,328 — — — 506,328
Eurobonds - — 309,619 — 309,619
Minimum royolties 10,076 47,076 32,000 81,000 170,152
Commercial paper 77,726 — — —_ 77,726
Synthetic lease 1,189 2,378 61,433 — 65,000
Other obligations — 15,000 — — 15,000

On May 22, 2001, the Company received a 350 million Euro (or $302.9 million based on the exchange rate in effect on
such date) 180-day credit facility (the “Bridge Loan”) from Citicorp North America, Inc. and Chase Manhattan Bank.
The proceeds were primarily used to finance the acquisiion of MEXX on May 23, 2001.

On August 7, 2001, the Company issued 350 million Eurcs (or $307.2 million based on the exchange rate in effect on
such date) of 6.625% notes due in 2006 (the “Eurcbonds”). The Eurobonds are listed on the Luxembourg Stock
Exchange and received a credit rating of BBB from Standard & Poor’s and Baa2 from Moody's Investor Services. The net
proceeds of the issuance were primarily used to repay the outstanding balance of the Bridge Loan, which expired on
November 16, 2001.

On November 15, 2001, the Company received a $500 million 364-day unsecured financing commitment under a bank
revolving credit facility replacing its previously existing $500 million facility. This bank facility, as well as the Company’s
$250 million bank facility that matures in November 2003 (collectively, the “*Agreement”), have received a credit rating of
BBB from Standard & Poor’s and Baa2 from Moody’s Investor Services, and may be either drawn upon or vsed as a liquid-
ity facility to support the issuance of A2/P2 rated commercial paper. The Agreement supports the Company’s $750 mil-
lion commercial paper program, which is used to fund working capital and other general corporate requirements. The
carrying amount of the Company’s borrowings under the commercial paper program approximate fair value because the
interest rates are based on floating rates, which are determined by prevailing market rates. The conumercial paper is classi-
fied as long-term debt as of December 29, 2001 as it is the Company’s intent and ability to refinance such obligations on
a long-term basis. At Decermnber 29, 2001, the Company had approximately $77.7 million outstanding under the Agree-
ment, all of which supported the issuance of commercial paper with a weighted average interest rate of 3.1%. The
Agreement contains certain customary covenants, including financial covenants requiring the Company to maintain speci-
fied debt leverage and fixed charge coverage ratios, and covenants restricting the Company’s ability to, among other things,
incur indebtedness, grant liens, make investments and acquisitions, and sell assets. The Company believes it is in compliance
with such covenants. The Company'’s ability to obtain funding through its commercial paper program is subject to, among
other things, the Company maintaining an investment-grade credit rating.

On May 22, 2001, the Company entered into an off-balance sheet arrangement (synthetic lease) to acquire various
land and building equipment and construct real property improvements associated with warchouse and distribution
facilies in Ohio and Rhode Island. The lease terms are each five years, with up to four renewal periods of five years
each with the consent of the lessor. The operating lease arrangements are with a lessor who through a limited partner-
ship has contributed equity in excess of 3 1/2% of the total value of the estimated cost to complete these facilities,
which is expected to be approximately $65 million. The leases include guarantees by the Company for a substantial por-
tion of the financing and options to purchase the facilities at original cost. The Company selected this financing
arrangement to take advantage of the favorable financing rates that it offered. The lessor financed the acquisition of the
facilides through equity funded by third-party financial institutions. The third-party financial institutions who hold the
equity are partners of the lessor. The Company’s transactions with the lessor are limited to the operating lease agree-
ments and the associated rent expense that will be included in Selling, General and Administrative Expense in the con-
solidated Statements of Income. The Company has not entered into any other off-balance sheet arrangements other
than normal operating leases.

MEXX has short-term credit facilities available of approximately 22.0 million Euros (or $19.5 million based on the
exchange rate in effect on such date) as of December 29, 2001, which remained undrawn as of March 1, 2002.

As of December 29, 2001, the Company had lines of credit aggregating $410 million, which were primarily available to
cover trade letters of credit, At December 29, 2001 and December 30, 2000, the Company had letters of credit of $228
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million and $271 million, respectively. These letters of credit, which have terms ranging from one to ten months, prima-
rily collateralize the Company’ obligations to third parties for the purchase of inventory. The fair value of these letters of
credit approximates contract values.

We anticipate that our cash flows from operatons, commercial paper program and bank and letter of credit facilities
will be sufficient to fund our future liquidity requirements and that we will be able to adjust the amounts available under
these facilities if necessary. Such sufficiency and availability may be adversely affected by a variety of factors, including,
without limitation, retailer and consumer acceptance of the Companys products, which may in turn impact the
Company’s financial performance, maintenance of the Company’ investment grade credit rating, as well as interest rate
and exchange rate fluctuations.

2000 VS, 1999

We ended 2000 with cash and cash equivalents of $54.6 million compared to $37.9 million of cash and cash equivalents
at year end 1999, and $269.2 million of debt at year end 2000 compared to $116.1 million of debt outstanding at year
end 1999.This $136.4 million change in our cash and debt position was due primarily to $247.7 million for the repur-
chase of common stock, $88.1 million for capital expenditures (primarily related to the technological upgrading of our
distribution facilities and information systems) and in-store merchandise shop expenditures and $55.2 million for pur-
chase price payments in connection with acquisitions, offset by cash provided from operating activities.

Net cash provided by operating activities was $268.0 million in 2000, compared to $301.0 million in 1999.This $33.0
million decrease was due primarily to a $27.5 million use of cash for working capital in 2000, compared to cash gener-
ated from a $23.0 million decrease in net working capital investment in 1959 and the $21.0 million restructuring charge
recorded in 2000.

Accounts receivable decreased $31.2 million, or 10.4%, at year end 2000 compared to year end 1999. This decrease in
accounts receivable primarily reflected our continued focus on working capital management along with the acceleration
of Holiday shipments within the fourth quarter. :

Inventory increased $61.5 million, or 14.7%, at year end 2000 compared to year end 1999. This increase was primarily
due to inventories of our recently acquired and launched businesses, incremental in-transit wholesale inventories for
Spring 2001, and an increase in Qutlet inventories to support our additional store base. Qur average inventory turnover
rate improved slightly to 4.3 times in 2000, compared to 4.2 times in 1999.

Net cash used in investing activities was $147.5 million in 2000, compared to $240.9 million in 1999.The 2000 net cash
used primarily reflected capital and in-store merchandise shop expenditures of $88.1 million, $40.2 million for the pur-
chase of MONET and $15.0 million in additional payments related to the purchase of our interests in LUCKY BRAND
DUNGAREES and SIGRID OLSEN, compared to the 1999 acquisition costs of $177.8 million for our interests in our 1999
acquisitions and capital and in-store merchandise shop expenditures of $98.0 mullion, as well as $29.0 million for an equity
investment in Kenneth Cole Productions, Inc. partially offset by disposals of investments of $65.5 million.

Net cash used in financing actvites was $99.4 million in 2000, compared to $187.7 million in 1999.This $88.3 million
decrease primarily reflected a decrease of $33.5 million in stock repurchase expenditures in 2000 over 1999, partially off-
set by net borrowings of $153.1 million compared to $116.1 million in 1999 and an increase in net proceeds from the
exercise of stock options of $§14.0 million. As of March 7, 2001, we have expended approximately $1.454 billion of the
$1.675 billion authorized to date under our stock repurchase program. Our borrowings peaked at $482.3 million during
the year.

At year end 2000, we had $269.2 millien outstanding under our commercial paper program and $271.5 million out-
standing under letter of credit facilities in place primarily to support our merchandise purchasing requirements.

CERTAIN INTEREST RATE AND FOREIGN CURRENCY RISKS
We finance our capital needs through available cash and marketable securities, operating cash flow, letter of credit, synthetic
lease and bank revolving credit facilities, other credit facilities and commercial paper issuances. Our floating rate bank revolv-
ing credit facility, bank lines and commercial paper program expose us to market risk for changes in interest rates. As of
December 29, 2001, we have not employed interest rate hedging to mitigate such risks with respect to our floating rate facil-
ities. We believe that our recent Eurobond offering, whiach is a fixed rate obligation, partially mitgates the risks with respect
to our variable rate financing. We anticipate using interest rate hedging instruments to further mitigate such risks during 2002.
The acquisiion of MEXX, which transacts business in foreign currencies, has increased the Company’s exposure to
exchange rate fluctuations. We mitigate the risks associated with changes in foreign currency rates through foreign
exchange forward contracts and collars to hedge transactions denominated in foreign currencies for periods of less than
one vear and to hedge expected payment of intercompany transactions with our non-U.S. subsidiaries, which now
include MEXX. Gains and losses on contracts, which hedge specific foreign currency denominated commitments are rec-
ognized in the period in which the transaction is completed.
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The table below presents the amount of contracts outstanding, the contract rate and unrealized gain or (loss), as of
December 29, 2001:

British Pound
U.S. Dollar Sterling Contract Unrealized
Currency in thousands Amount Amount Rate Gain {Loss)
FORWARD CONTRACTS:
Canadian dollars $ 442t 0.6316 $ 22
British pound sterling 700 1.4005 (24)
Euros 26,033 0.9099 752
Euros £2,400 0.6206 7Y
AVERAGE RATE COLLAR CONTRACTS:
Euros § 55,000 0.8582 1o $ (290)
0.9378

As part of the European Economic and Monetary Union, a single currency (the “Euro”} has replaced the national cur-
rencies of the principal European countries (other than the United Kingdom) in which the Company conducts business
and manufacturing. The conversion rates between the Euro and the participating nations’ currencies were fixed as of
January 1, 1999, with the participating national currencies being removed from circulation between January 1, 2002 and
June 30, 2002 and replaced by Euro notes and coinage. Under the regulations governing the transition to a single cur-
rency, there is a “no compulsion, no prohibition” rule, which states that no one can be prevented from using the Euro
after January 1, 2002 and no one is obliged to use the Euro before July 2002. In keeping with this rule, the Company
expects to begin using the Euro for invoicing and payments by the end of the second quarter of 2002. Based upon the
information currently available, the Company does not expect that the transition to the Euro will have a material adverse
effect on the business or consolidated financial condition of the Company.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In November 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) reached a
consensus on Issue No. 01-9 (formerly EITF Issue 00-25), “Accounting for Consideration Given to a Customer or a
Reseller of the Vendor's Products.” This issue addresses the recognition, measurement and income statement classification
of consideration from a vendor to a customer in connection with the customer’s purchase or promotion of the vendor’s
products. This consensus is expected to only impact revenue and expense classifications and not change reported net
income. In accordance with the consensus reached, the Company will adopt the required accounting beginning December
30,2001, the first day of fiscal year 2002, The Company believes that the impact of this required accounting will not have a
material impact on the revenue and expense classifications in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Income.

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations” and SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets”” SFAS No. 141 requires that all business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001 are to be accounted
for using the purchase method and specifies the criteria for the recognition and measurement of goodwill and other
intangible assets acquired in a business combination. SFAS No. 142 requires that goodwill and intangible assets with indef-
inite useful lives are to no longer be amortized but rather be tested at least annually for impairment. SFAS No. 142 also
requires that intangible assets with definite useful lives will continue to be amortized over their respective useful lives to
their estimated residual values, and reviewed for impairment in accordance with SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” The Company adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 141 immediately and
SFAS No, 142 effective December 30, 2001. The Company estimates that diluted earnings per share will increase by
approximately $0.09 in 2002 as the majority of amortization of goodwill and other intangible assets will be eliminated as
a result of the adoption of SFAS No. 142. The amortization expense of goodwill and intangibles for the twelve months
ended December 29, 2001 rotaled $21.3 milkion.

In October 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144,“Accounting for Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”. SFAS
No. 144 addresses financial accounting and reporting for the impairment or disposal of long-lived assets. SFAS No. 144
also extends the reporting requirements to report separately as discontinued operations, components of an entity that have
either been disposed of or classified as held-for-sale. The Company has adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 144 effective
December 30, 2001, and we do not expect that such adoption will have a significant effect on the Company’s results of
operations or financial position.

USE OF ESTIMATES AND CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
requires management to make estimates and assumptions thac affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date
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of the financial statements and revenues and expenses during the period. Significant accounting policies employed by the
Company, including the use of estimates, are presented in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Critical accounting policies are those that are most important to the portrayal of the Company’s financial condition and
the results of operations, and require management’s most difficult, subjective and complex judgments, as a result of the
need to make estimates about the effect of matters that are inherently uncertain. The Company’s most critical accounting
policies, discussed below, pertain to revenue recognition, accounts receivable — trade, net, inventories, accrued expenses and
derivative instruments. In applying such policies management must use some amounts that are based upon its informed
judgments and best estimates. Because of the uncertainty inherent in these estimates, actual results could differ from esti-
mates used in applying the critical accounting policies. The Company is not aware of any reasonably likely events or cir-
cumstances which would result in different amounts being reported that would materially affect its financial condition or
results of operations.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue within our wholesale operations is recognized at the dme when merchandise is shipped from the Company’s
distribution centers, or if shipped direct from contractor to customer, when title passes. Wholesale revenue is net of
returns, discounts and allowances. Discounts and allowances are recognized when the related revenues are recognized.
Retail store revenues are recognized at the time of sale. Retail revenues are net of returns.

Accounts Receivable - Trade, Net

In the normal course of business, the Company extends credit to customers, which satisfy pre-defined credit criteria.
Accounts Receivable ~Trade, Net, as shown on the Consolidated Balance Sheets, is net of allowances and anticipated dis-
counts. An allowance for doubtful accounts is determined through analysis of the aging of accounts receivable at the date
of the financial statements, assessments of collectibility based on historic trends and an evaluation of the impact of eco-
nomic conditions. An allowance for discounts is based on those discounts relating to open invoices where trade discounts
have been extended to customers. Costs associated with potential returns of unsaleable products as well as allowable cus-
tomer markdowns and operational charge backs, net of historical recoveries, are included as a reduction to net sales and
are part of the provision for allowances included in Accounts Receivable — Trade, Net. These provisions result from divi-
sional seasonal negotiations as well as historic deduction trends net of historic recoveries and the evaluation of current
market conditions.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at lower of cost (using the first-in, first-out method) or market. The Company continually evaluates
the composition of its inventories assessing slow-turning, ongoing product as well as prior seasons fashion product.
Market value of distressed inventory is valued based on historical sales trends for this category of inventory of our individ-
ual product lines, the impact of market trends and economic conditions, and the value of current orders in house relating
to the future sales of this type of inventory.

Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses for employee insurance, workers’ compensation, profit sharing, contracted advertising, professional fees,
and other outstanding Company obligations are assessed based on statistical trends, open contractual obligations, and esti-
mates based on projections and current requirements.

Derivative Instrumenis and Foreign Currency Risk Management Programs

As of December 31, 2000, the Company adopted SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activides” and SFAS No. 138, “Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities ~ an
Amendment of FASB Statement No. 133, which require that every derivadve instrument (including certain derivative
instruments imbedded in other contracts) be recorded in the balance sheet as either an asset or liability measured at its fair
value. These statements also require that changes in the derivative’s fair value be recognized currently in earnings in either
income (foss) from continuing operations or accumulated other comprehensive income (oss), depending on the timing
and designated purpose of the derivative. The impact on the Company’s financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows, upon the adoption of these pronouncements, was immaterial.

The Company uses foreign currency forward contracts and collars for the specific purpose of hedging the exposure to
variability in expected future cash flows associated with inventory purchases and sales collections from transactions associ-
ated primarily with our Canadian and Eurdpean entities. These inscruments are designated as cash flow hedges and, in
accordance with SFAS Nos. 133 and 138, any unrealized gains or Josses are included in accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss), net of related tax effects, with the corresponding asset or liability recorded in the balance sheet. The ineffec-
tive portion of the cash flow hedge, if any, is recognized in current-period earnings. Other comprehensive income (loss) is
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reclassified to current-period earnings when the hedged transaction affects earnings. At December 29, 2001, the
Company had entered into foreign currency collars with a net notional amount of $55 million with maturity dates in
May 2002 and August 2002.

Occasionally, the Company purchases short-term foreign currency contracts and options outside of the cash flow hedg-
ing program to neutralize month-end balance sheet exposures. These derivative instruments do not qualify as cash flow
hedges under SFAS Nos. 133 and 138 and are recorded at fair value with all gains or losses, which have not been signifi-
cant, recognized in current period earnings immediately.

As of December 29, 2001, the Company had forward contracts maturing through April 2002 to sell 7.0 million
Canadian dollars, 0.5 million British pounds sterling, and 32.5 million European Euros. The aggregate U.S. dollar value of
the foreign exchange contracts was approximately $34.6 million at year end 2001, as compared with approximately $12.6
million at year end 2000. Unrealized gains and losses for outstanding foreign exchange forward contracts were not mate-
rial at December 29, 2001 and December 30, 2000.

INFLATION
The rate of inflation over the past few years has not had a significant impact on our sales or profitability.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
Statements contained herein and in future filings by the Company with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the
“SEC”), in the Company's press releases, and in oral statements made by, or with the approval of, authorized personnel
that relate to the Company’s future performance, including, without limitation, statements with respect to the
Company’s anticipated results of operations or level of business for 2002, or any other future period, are forward-look-
ing statements within the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Such state-
ments, which are indicated by words or phrases such as

v

plan™, “anticipate”, “estimate”’, “project”, “management
expects”, “the Company believes”,“remains optimistic” or “currently envisions” and similar phrases are based on current
expectations only, and are subject to certain risks, uncertainties and assumptions. Should one or more of these risks or
uncertainties materialize, or should underlying assumptions prove incorrect, actual results may vary materially from
those anticipated, estimated or projected.

Among the factors that could cause actual results to materially differ include changes in regional, national, and global
microeconomic and macroeconomic conditions, including the levels of consumer confidence and spending, consumer
income growth, higher personal debt levels, rising energy costs, fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates, increasing
interest rates and increased stock market volatility; risks related to retailer and consumer acceptance of the Company’s
products; risks associated with competition and the marketplace, including the financial condition of, and consolidations,
restructurings and other ownership changes in, the apparel {and related products) industry and the retail industry, the
introduction of new products or pricing changes by the Company'’s competitors, and the Company’s ability to effec-
tively remain competitive with respect to product, value and service; risks associated with the Company’s dependence
on sales to a limited number of large department store customers, including risks related to customer requirements for
vendor margin support, and those related to extending credit to customers; risks relating to retailers’ buying patterns and
purchase commitments for apparel products in general and the Company’ products specifically; the Company’s ability
to correctly balance the level of its fabric and/or merchandise commitments with actual customer orders; the
Company’s ability to effectively distribute its product within its targeted markets; risks related to the Company’s ability
to establish, defend and protect its trademarks and other proprietary rights and other risks relating to managing intellec-
tual property issues; uncertaintes relating to the Company’s ability to successfully implement its growth strategies, inte-
grate recent or future acquisitions, maintain preduct licenses, or successfully launch new products and lines; risks
associated with the entry into new markets, either through internal development activities or acquisitions; risks associ-
ated with the possible failure of the Company’s unaffiliated manufacturers to manufacture and deliver products in a
timely manner, to meet quality standards or to comply with the Company’s policies regarding labor practices or applica-
ble laws or regulations; risks associated with changes in social, political, economic and other conditions affecting foreign . .
operations and sourcing, including currency rate fluctuations; risks associated with terrorist activities, including reduced i [
shopping activity as a result of public safety concerns and disruption in the receipt and delivery of merchandise; and any '
significant disruption in the Company’s relationships with its suppliers, manufacturers and employees.

The apparel and related product markets are highly competitive, both within the United States and abroad. The
Company’s ability to successfully compete depends on a number of factors, including the Company’s ability to effec-
tively anticipate, gauge and respond to changing consumer demands and tastes, to translate market trends into appropri-
ate, saleable product offering relatively far in advance, and to operate within substancial production and delivery
constraints. In addition, consumer and customer acceptance and support (especially by the Company’ largest customers)
depend upon, among other things, product, value and service.
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With respect to foreign sourcing, the Company notes that US. legislation which would further restrict the importatdon
into the US. and/or increase the cost of textles and apparel produced abroad has been periodically introduced in
Congress. Although it is unclear whether any new legislation will be enacted into law, it appears likely that various new
legislative or executive initiatives will be proposed. These initiatives may include a reevaluation of the trading status of cer-
tain countries, and/or retaliatory duties, quotas or other trade sanctions, which, if enacted, would increase the cost of
products purchased from suppliers in such countries. In light of the very substantial portion of the Company’ products,
which are manufactured by foreign suppliers, the enactment of new legislation or the administration of current interna-
donal trade regulations, or executive action affecting international textile agreements could adversely affect the
Company’s operations.

The Company from time to time reviews its possible entry into new markets, either through internal development
activities, acquisitions or licensing. The entry into new markets (including the development and launch of new product
categories and product lines), such as the Company’s entry into the moderate market, the acquisition of businesses, such as
the Company's acquisitions of MEXX, SIGRID OLSEN, LUCKY BRAND DUNGAREES, LAUNDRY and MONET, and the
licensing of brands such as CANDIES*, DKNY* JEANS and DKNY* ACTIVE, CITY DKNY*, KENNETH COLE NEW YORK,
REACTION KENNETH COLE and UNLISTED.COM, are accompanied by risks inherent in any such new business venture
and may require methods of operations and marketing and financial strategies different from those employed in the
Company’s other businesses. Moreover, certain new businesses may be lower margin businesses and may require the
Company to achieve significant cost efficiencies. In additdon, new markets, product categories, product lines and busi-
nesses may involve buyers, store customers and/or competitors different from the Company’s historical buyers, customers
and competitors. Furthermore, the Company’s acquisition of other businesses entails the normal risks inherent in such
transactions, including, without limitation, possible difficulties, delays and/or unanticipated costs in integrating the busi-
ness, operations, personnel, and/or systems of the acquired entity; risks that projected or satisfactory level of sales, profits
and/or return on investment will not be generated; risks that expenditures required for capital items or working capital
will be higher than anticipated; risks involving the Company’s ability to retain and appropriately motivate key personnel
of the acquired business; and risks associated with unanticipated events and unknown or uncertain liabilities. In addition,
businesses licensed by the Company are subject to risks inherent in such transactions, including compliance with terms
set forth in the applicable license agreements, including among other things the maintenance of certain levels of sales, and
the public perception and/or acceptance of the licensor’s brands or other product lines, which are not within the
Company’s control.

Reeference is also made to the other economic, competitive, governmental and technological factors affecting the
Company’s operations, markets, products, services and prices as are set forth in our Annual Reports on Form 10-K,
including, without limitation, those set forth under the heading “Business-Competition; Certain Risks”.

The Company undertakes no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a
result of new information, future events or otherwise.
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Management’s Report

The management of Liz Claiborne Inc. is responsible for
the preparation, objectivity and integrity of the consoli-
dated financial statements and other information contained
in this Annual Report. The consolidated financial state-
ments have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States and
include some amounts that are based on management’s
informed judgments and best estimates.

To help assure that financial information is reliable and
assets are safeguarded, management maintains a system of
internal controls and procedures which we believe is effec-
tive in accomplishing these objectives. These controls and
procedures are designed to provide reasonable assurance, at
appropriate costs, that transactions are executed and
recorded in accordance with management’s authorization.

The independent public accountants have audited our
consolidated financial statements as described in their
report. In the course of their audits, the independent public
accountants have developed an overall understanding of the
Company’s accounting and financial controls and have
conducted other tests as they considered necessary to
support their opinion on the financial statements. The
independent public accountants report their findings
and recommendations to management and the Audit
Committee of the Board of Directors. Control procedures
are implemented or revised as appropriate to respond to
these recommendations. There have not been any material
control weaknesses brought to the attention of manage-
ment or the Audit Committee during the periods covered
by the report of the independent public accountants.
However, in as much as the independent public account-
ants’ audits consisted of selected tests of control policies and
procedures and did not cover the entire system of internal
control, they would not necessartly disclose all weaknesses
which might exist.

The Audit Committee, which consists solely of non-
management directors, meets with the independent public
accountants, internal auditors and management periodi-
cally to review their respective activities and the discharge
of their respective responsibilities. Both the independent
public accountanrs and the internal auditors have unre-
stricted access to the Audit Committee, with or without
management, to discuss the scope and results of their
audits and any recommendations regarding the system of
internal controls.

TV
Paul R. Chanon

Chairman of the Board
ond Chief Executive Officer

Michoel Scorpa
Vice President and
Chief Financial
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Report of Independent Public Accountants

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of liz Claiborne Inc :
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets of Liz Claiborne Inc. (a Delaware corporation) and
subsidiaries as of December 29, 2001 and December 30,
2000, and the related consolidated statements of income,
retained earnings, comprehensive income and changes in
capital accounts and cash flows for each of the three fiscal
years in the period ended December 29, 2001. These finan-
cial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our andits in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presenta-
tion. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of Liz Claiborne Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 29,
2001 and December 30, 2000, and the results of their oper-
ations and their cash flows for each of the three fiscal years
in the period ended December 29, 2001 in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States.

Ot Onszen TP

New York, New York
February 19, 2002

It oo




Consolidated Balance Sheels

All amounts in thousands except share data

December 29, 2001

December 30, 2000

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cosh equivalents
Marketable securities
Accounts receivable — trade, net
Inventories
Deferred income taxes
Other current assets

Total current assets

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - NET
GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLES - NET

OTHER ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Income taxes payable

Total current liabilities

LONG-TERM DEBT
OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
DEFERRED INCOME TAXES
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (NOTE 9)
MINORITY INTEREST
STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
Preferred stock, $.01 par value, authorized shares — 50,000,000,

issued shares - none

Common stock, $1.00 par value, authorized shares — 250,000,000,

issued shares ~ 176,437,234
Capital in excess of par value
Retained earnings

Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Common stock in tfreasury, of cost = 71,212,310 shares in 2001
and 74,018,800 shares in 2000

Total stockholders' equity

$ 127,635
32,993
362,189
487,923
37,386
57,900
1,106,026

352,001
455,113
38,115
$ 1,951,255

$ 236,506
199,772
10,636
447,314

387,345
15,000
37,314

8,121

176,437
89,266

2,061,033
(5,346)

2,321,390

(1,265,229)
1,056,161
$ 1,951,255

$ 47,020
7,610
267,772
479,845
27,698
80,631
910,576

297,424
276,213
27,946

$ 1,512,159

$ 199,254
151,280
7.370
357,904

269,219
15,000
31,019

4,732

176,437
83,808

1,896,873
(7.656)

2,149,462

(1,315,177)
834,285
$ 1,512,159

The accompanying notes to consolidated finoncial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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Consclidoted Statements of Income

All dollar amounts in thousands except per common share dala December 20, 2001 December 30, 2000 Janyary 1, 2000
NET SALES $3,448,522 $3,104,141 82,806,548
Cost of goods sold 2,021,272 1,870,269 1,708,966
GROSS PROFIT 1,427,250 1,233,872 1,097,582
Selling, general and adminisirotive expenses 1,080,483 909,142 797,829
Restucturing charge 15,050 21,041 —_
OPERATING INCOME 331,717 303,689 299,753
Other {expense] income - net (3,511) 6,658 (956)
Interest {expense] income - net (28,117} (21,917) 2,789
INCOME BEFORE PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES 300,089 288,430 301,586
Provision for income taxes 108,032 103,835 109,144
NET INCOME $ 192,057 $ 184,595 $ 192,442
NET INCOME PER COMMON SHARE:
Basic 3 1.85 $ 173 $ 1.56
Diluted H 1.83 s 172 H 156
DIVIDENDS PAID PER COMMON SHARE 3 23 $ .23 $ 23

The accompanying nales o consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these stalements.
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Caonsolidated Statements of Retained Earnings, Comprehensive Income and Changes in Capital Accounts

Accumulated
Number Capital in Other Com- Number
a Excess of Retained  prehensive of
All dollar amounts in thousands Shares Amount  Par Valve Earmings Income {toss) Shares Amount Total
BALANCE. JAN. 2, 1999 176,437,234  $176,437  §50,428 $1,574,017 $(2,721y 48,535,914  $ (817,051) § 981,110
Net income —_ — — 192,442 o — — 192,442
Other comprehensive income
[loss}, net of tax:
Translation adjustment — — — — (431) — — (431)
Adjustment to unrealized
{losses) on available
for sale securities — — — —_ (11 —_ — (111)
Total comprehensive income 191,900
Exercise of stock options and
related tax benefits — — 1,031 (2,799) — (438,612) 7.976 6,208
Cash dividends declared — — — (27,821) — — — (27,821)
Exercise of put warrants — —  (1,996) — — — 1,996 —
Reclassification of put warrant
obligatians, net — — 30,794 — — — — 30,794
Purchase of common stock — — — — — 14,776,600 (281,167) (281,167)
fssuance of common stock
under restricted stock and
employmenr agreements, nef — — — 3,663 — 123,252 {2,518) 1,145
BALANCE, JAN. 1, 2000 176,437,234  §176,437 $80,257 81,739,502 $(3,263) 62,997,154  $(1,090,764) 8§ 902,169
Net income — — — 184,595 — — — 184,595

Other comprehensive income
{loss), net of tax:
Translation adjustment — — — — (3,625) — — (3,625)
Adjustment to unrealized
{losses) on available

for sale securities — — —_ — (768) — — (768)
Total comprehensive income 180,202
Exercise of stock options and

related tax benefits — — 3,551 (4,517) —  (1,318,188) 23,718 22,752
Cash dividends declared — — — (24,027) — — — (24,027)
Purchase of common stock — — — — — 12,310,610 (247,670) (247,670)

Issvonce of common stock
under restricted stock and

emp‘oymem agreements, net — —_ — 1,320 — 29,224 {461) 859
BALANCE, DEC. 30, 2000 176,437,234  §176,437 883,808  $1,8%6,873 $(7.656) 74,018,800 $(1,315,177) § 834,285
Net income — — — 192,057 — — — 192,057

Other comprehensive income
{loss), net of tax:

Translation adjustment — — — — 4,928 — — 4,928
Gains (losses) on cash flow
hedging derivatives — - — — (250) — — (250)

Adjusiment o unrealized
{losses) on available
for sale securilies — — — — (2,368) — — (2,368)

Total comprehensvve income 194,367
Exercise of stock options and

related tax benefils — — 5,458 — —  (2,363,076) 38,561 44,019
Cash dividends declared — — — 23,317 — — — (23,317)
Purchase of common stock — — — — — 155,000 (2,854) (2,854)

Issuance of common stock
under restricted stock and
emp!oymem agreements, net —— — — (4,580) — (598,414) 14,241 9,661
BALANCE, DEC. 29, 2001 176,437,234  §176,437  $89.266 $2,061,033 §(5,346) 71,212,310  $(1,265,22%) 81,056,161

The occompanying noles to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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FISCAL YEARS ENDED

All dollar emounts in thousonds December 29, 2001 December 30, 2000 January 1, 2000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income § 192,057 3 184,595 § 192,442
Adjustmenls to reconcile net income 1o net cash provided by

operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 101,491 77,033 67,836
Deferred income taxes, net 11,925 8,418 9,839
Resiructuring charge 15,050 21,041 —
Othernet 13,442 4,410 7,797

Changes in current assets and liabilities:

{increase) decrease in accounts receivable - trade, net (44,957) 29,245 (39,99¢)
Decrease {increase| in inveniories 37,535 (46,408) 80,438
Decrease in other current assets 10,813 16,811 17,771 ‘
Increase |decrease| in accounts payable 13,249 9.834 (43,489)
(Decrease) increase in accrued expenses (22,115) (36,849) 11,822
Increase {decrease| in income faxes paycble 723 (165) (3,459)
Net cash provided by operating activities 329213 267,965 300,961
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of invesiment instruments (83) (14,654) —
Disposals of invesiment instruments — 14,573 65,459
Purchases of property and equipment (82,236) (66,711) (75,130)
Purchases of trademarks and licenses — (3,683) (6,400)
Purchase of restricted equity investment — — (29,000
Payments far acquisitions, net of cash acquired (274,142) (55,178) (177,825)
Payments for in-store merchandise shops {24,718) (21,381) (22,879)
Othernet (3,496) (496) 4,924
Net cash used in investing acfivities (384,675) (147,530) (240,851)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from Eurobond issuance 309,619 — —
Commercial poper - net (191,492) 153,134 116,085
Proceeds from exercise of common stock opfions 39,193 19,201 5,177
Dividends paid (23,317) (24,027) (27.821)
Purchase of commaon stock, nef of put warrant premiums (2,854) (247,670) (281,167)
Net cash provided by {used in) financing activities 131,149 (99,362) (187,726)
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH 4,928 (3.625) (431)
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 80,615 17,448 (128,047)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 47,020 29,572 157,619
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $ 127,635 $ 47,020 $ 29,572

The accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements are an integrol part of these stotements.
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NOTE 1. Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of Operations

Liz Claiborne Inc. is engaged primarily in the design and marketing of a broad range of apparel, accessories and
fragrances.

Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Liz Claiborne Inc. and its wholly-owned and majority-
owned subsidiaries (the “Company™). All intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and dis-
closure of contingent gains and losses at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Fair Volue of Financiol Instruments

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents and receivables approximates their carrying value due to their short-term
maturities. The fair value of long-term debt instruments approximates the carrying value and is estimated based on the
current rates offered to the Company for debt of similar maturities.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
All highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less at the date of purchase are classified as
cash equivalents.

Marketable Securities

Investrnents are stated at market. The estimated fair value of the marketable securities is based on quoted prices in an
active market. Gains and losses on investment transactions are determined using the specific identification method and are
recognized in income based on setdement dates. Unrealized gains and losses are included in accumulated other compre-
hensive income (loss) until realized. Dividends on equity securities are recorded in income based on payment dates.
Interest is recognized when earned. All marketable securities are available-for-sale investments.

Accounts Receivable - Trade, Nei

In the normal course of business, the Company extends credit to customers, which satisfy pre-defined credit criteria.
Accounts Receivable - Trade, Net, 35 shown on the Consolidated Balance Sheets, is net of allowances and anticipated dis-
counts. An allowance for doubtful accounts is determined through analysis of the aging of accounts receivable at the date
of the financial statemnents, assessments of collectibility based on historic trends and an evaluation of the impact of eco-
nomic conditions. An allowance for discounts is based on those discounts relating to open invoices where trade discounts
have been extended to customers. Costs associated with potential returns of unsaleable products as well as allowable cus-
tomer markdowns and operational charge backs, net of historical recoveries, are included as a reduction to net sales and
are part of the provision for allowances included in Accounts Receivable - Trade, Net. These provisions result from divi-
sional seasonal negotiations as well as historic deduction trends net of historic recoveries and the evaluation of current
market conditions.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at lower of cost (using the first-in, first-out method) or matket. The Company continually evaluates
the composition of its inventories assessing slow-turning ongoing product as well as prior seasons fashion product.
Market value of distressed inventory is valued based on historical sales trends for this category of inventory of our individ-
ual product lines, the impact of market trends and economic conditions, and the value of current orders in house relating
to the future sales of this type of inventory.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment Is stated at cost less accurnulated depreciation and amortization. Buildings and building improve-
ments are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives of 20 to 39 years. Machinery and
equipment and furniture and fixtures are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives of
three to seven years. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the remaining lease term or the estimated
useful lives of the assets.
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Goodwill and Intangibles
Goodwill and intangibles consist principally of goodwill, which is amortized using the straight-line method over a period
of 20 to 25 years. Goodwill was $404.7 million, net of accumulated amortization of $29.1 million as of December 29,
2001. As of December 30, 2000, goodwill was $220.7 million, net of accumulated amortization of $12.7 million. Also
included are trademarks that are owned or licensed. Trademarks that are owned are amortized using the straight-line
method over a period of 20 to 25 years. Trademarks that are licensed are amortized over the individual terms of the
respective license agreements, which range from 5 to 15 years. Intangtbles amounted to $50.4 million in 2001 and $55.5
million in 2000, net of accumulated amortization of $11.5 million as of December 29, 2001 and $6.5 million as of
December 30, 2000.

The recoverability of the carrying values of all long-lived assets is evaluated periodically based on a review of forecasted
operating cash flows and the profitability of the relared business. For the three-year period ended December 29, 2001,
there were no material adjustments to the carrying values of all long-lived assets resulting from these evaluations.

Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses for employee insurance, workers’ compensation, profit sharing, contracted advertising, professional fees,
and other outstanding Company obligations are assessed based on trends, open contractual obligations, and estimates
based on projections and current requirements.

Foreign Currency Translation

Assets and liabilicies of non-U.S. subsidiaries have been translated at year-end exchange rates. Revenues and expenses have
been translated at average mtes of exchange in effect during the year. Resulting translation adjustments have been
included in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss). Gains and losses on translation of intercompany loans with
foreign subsidiaries of a long-term investment nature are also included in this component of stockholders’ equity.

Foreign Exchange Forward Contracts

The Company enters into foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge transactions denominated in foreign currencies
for periods of less than one year and to hedge expected payment of intercompany transactions with its non-U.S. sub-
sidiaries. Gains and losses on contracts which hedge specific foreign currency denominated commitments are recognized
in the period in which the transaction is complete and are accounted for as part of the underlying transaction. Transaction
gains and losses included in income were not significant in 2001, 2000 and 1999.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue within our wholesale operations is recognized at the time when merchandise is shipped from the Company’s
distribution centers, or if shipped direct from contractor to customer, when title passes. Wholesale revenue is net of
returns, discounts and allowances. Retail store revenues are recognized at the time of sale. Retail revenues are net of
returns. Returns, discounts and allowances are recognized when the related revenues are recognized.

Advertising and Promotion
All costs associated with advertising and promoting products are expensed during the periods when the advertising takes
place. Costs associated with cooperative advertising programs, under which the Company, at its discretion, agrees to share
costs under negotiated contracts, of customers’ advertising and promotional expenditures, are expensed when the related
revenues are recognized. Advertising and promotion expenses were $115.2 million in 2001, $116.9 million in 2000 and
$104.3 million in 1999.

Fiscal Year
The Company’s fiscal year ends on the Saturday closest to December 31. The 2001, 2000 and 1999 fiscal years each
reflected a 52-week period.

Stack Dividend

On December 19, 2001, the Board of Directors authorized a two-for-one stock split of the Company’s common stock,
payable in the form of a stock dividend to stockholders of record as of the close of business on December 31, 2001. The
100% stock dividend was paid on January 16, 2002. All share data and earnings per share amounts presented have been
restated to reflect this stock dividend.

Prior Years' Reclassification

Certain items previously reported in specific captions in the accompanying financial statements and notes have been
reclassified to conform with the current year’s classifications.
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NOTE 2: Aquisitions
On May 23, 2001, the Company completed the purchase of 100 percent of the equity interest of Mexx Group B.V.
(“Mexx"), a privately held fashion apparel company incorporated and existing under the laws of the Netherlands, for a
purchase price of approximately 295 million Euros {or $255.1 million based on the exchange rate in effect on such date),
in cash at closing (including the assumption of debt), plus an earnout designed to equal 28% of future implied equity value,
payable at either party’s option with respect to the year ended 2003, 2004 or 2005. Mexx designs and markets a wide range
of merchandise for women, men and children under the Mexx brand name. Mexx products are sold via wholesale and
retail formats in more than 40 countries in Europe, the Asia-Pacific region, Canada and the Middle East. The acquisition of
Mexx, included in operating results from the acquisition date, was accournted for using the purchase method of accounting.
The excess purchase price over fair market value of the underlying net assets acquired was $199.7 million. The purchase
price includes an adjustment for estimated transaction fees associated with the acquisition and the estimated expenses asso-
ciated with the closure of certain under-performing retail stores as well as the elimination of certain other duplicate sup-
port functions within the Mexx enterprise, which were decided prior to the consummation of the transaction. The
aggregate of the above items amounts to $32.6 million. Goodwill is being amortized on a straight-line basis over 20 years.
The fair market value of assets acquired was $179.2 million and Labilities assumed were $91.2 million.

The following unaudited pro forma information assumes the Mexx acquisition had occurred on January 2, 2000. The
pro forma information, as presented below, is not indicative of the results that would have been obtained had the transac-
tion occurred on January 2, 2000, nor is it indicative of the Company’s future results.

Oollars in thousands except per comman shore dato December 29, 2001 December 30,2000
Net sales $ 3,591,273 $ 3,456,863
Net income 180,297 177,063
Basic earnings per share $ 1.73 3 1.66
Diluted earnings per share 3 1.72 3 1.65

The above amounts reflect adjustments for interest expense from additional borrowings necessary to finance the acquisi-
ton, amortization of goodwill, and income tax effect based upon a pro forma effective tax rate of 36%. The unaudited
pro forma information gives effect only to adjustments described above and does not reflect management’s estimate of
any anticipated cost savings or other benefits as a result of the acquisiion.

On July 26, 2000, the Company completed the purchase of the majority of the assets of the Monet Group (‘‘Monet”)
for a total purchase price of $40.2 million. Monet is a leading designer and marketer of branded fashion jewelry sold
through department stores, popular priced merchandisers and internationally under the Monet, Monet Pearl, Monet
Signature, Monet2, Trifari and Marvella brands. Excess purchase price over fair market value of the underlying net assets
was allocated to goodwill and property based on estimates of fair values. Goodwill is being amortized on a swraight-line
basis over 20 years. The fair value of assets acquired was $46.4 million and liabilities assumed were $16.0 million. Annual
net sales of Monet in 1999 were approximately $96 million. Unaudited pro forma information related to this acquisition
is not included, as the impact of this transaction is not material to the consolidated results of the Company.

On November 2, 1999, the Company completed the purchase of the entire equity interest of Podell Industries, Inc.,
whose core business consists of the Laundry by Shelli Segal apparel line (“Laundry”). Laundry is marketed primarily to
select department and specialty stores. The acquisition was accounted for using the purchase method of accounting. The
total purchase price of Laundry, including the repayment of indebtedness, was approximately $44.7 million. The excess
purchase price over the fair market value of the underlying net assets was allocated to goodwill and property based on
estimates of fair values. The estmated fair value of assets acquired was $6.5 million, and estimated labilities assumed were
$5.3 million. Goodwill is being amortized on a straight-line basis over 20 years, Annual net sales of Laundry in 1998 were
approximately $76 million. Unaudited pro forma information related to this acquisition is not included, as the impact of
this transaction is not material to the consolidated results of the Company.

On June 8, 1999, the Company completed the purchase of 85.0 percent of the equity interest of Lucky Brand
Dungarees, Inc., whose core business consists of the Lucky Brand line of women’s and men’ denim-based sportswear. The
acquisiion was accounted for using the purchase method of accounting. The total purchase price consisted of a cash pay-
ment made at the closing date of approximately $85 million, and a payment to be made on March 31, 2003 of at least
$15 million, which may be increased to a maximum of $45 million based on the achievement of certain earnings targets.
An additional payment of $12.7 million was made in 2000 for tax-related purchase price adjustments. The excess pur-
chase price over the fair market value of the underlying net assets of $8.1 million was allocated to goodwill and property
based on estimates of fair values. The estimated fair value of assets acquired was $16.1 million and estimated liabilities
assumed was $8.0 million. Goodwill is being amortized on a straight-line basis over 25 years. After a 5-year period, the
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Company may be required to purchase the remaining equity interest at an amount equal to its then fair market value, or
elect to purchase the remaining equity interest at its then fair market value, or under certain circumstances at a 20% pre-
mium on such value. Annual net sales of Lucky Brand Dungarees, Inc. in 1998 were approximately $60 million.
Unaudited pro forma information related to this acquisition is not included, as the impact of this transaction is not mate-
rial to the consolidated results of the Company.

On February 12, 1999, the Company completed the purchase of 84.5 percent of the equity interest of Segrets, Inc.,
whose core business consists of the Sigrid Olsen women'’s apparel lines. In the fourth quarter of 1999, the Company pur-
chased an approximately 3.0 percent additional equity interest. In November 2000, the Company increased its equity
interest to 97.5 percent. The acquisition was accounted for using the purchase method of accounting. The excess purchase
price over the fair market value of the underlying net assets of $13.1 million was allocated to goodwill and property based
on estimates of fair values. Goodwill is being amortized on a straight-line basis over 25 years. The total amount of funds
required to acquire the interest and refinance certain indebtedness was approximately $56 million. The fair value of assets
acquired was $23.3 million and liabilities assumed was $10.2 million. After a 5-year period, the Company may elect to, or
be required to, purchase the remaining equity interest at an amount equal to its then fair market value. Annual net sales of
Segrets, Inc. in 1998 were approximately $60 million. Unaudited pro forma information related to this acquisition is not
included, as the impact of this transaction is not material to the consolidated results of the Company.

NOTE 3: licensing Commitments

In August 1999, March 2000 and April 2000, the Company consummated exclusive license agreements (with certain ter-
ritorial restrictions) with Kenneth Cole Productions, Inc. to manufacture, design, market and distribute women’s apparel
products under the trademarks “Kenneth Cole NewYork,” “Reaction Kenneth Cole” and “Unlisted.com” (the “Kenneth
Cole Marks”). Under the agreements, the Company is obligated to pay a royalty equal to a percentage of net sales of
products bearing the Kenneth Cole Marks. The initial term of the license agreements run through December 31, 2004
with an option to renew for three additional 5-year periods if certain sales thresholds are met.

In February 2000, the Company consummated an exclusive license agreement with Leslie Fay Marketing, Inc. (“Leslie
Fay”), a subsidiary of Leslie Fay Company, Inc. to design, manufacture, market, distribute and sell dresses under the Liz
Claiborne Dresses and Elisabeth Dresses labels. Not included in the agreement are dresses sold as part of the Liz
Claiborne Collection, Lizsport, Lizwear, Liz & Co. and Elisabeth sportswear lines. Under the agreements Leslie Fay is
obligated to pay a royalty equal to a percentage of net sales of the Company’s products. The initial term of the license
agreement runs through February 28, 2005, with an option to renew for two additional 5-year terms if certain sales
thresholds are met by the Lcensee.

In July 1998, the Company consummated an exclusive license agreement with Candie’s, Inc. to manufacture, market,
distribute and sell a line of fragrances for men and women using the “Candie’s” marks and logos. Under the agreement,
the Company is obligated to pay a royalty equal to a percentage of net sales of the “CANDIE'S"” products. The initial term
of the license agreement runs through December 31, 2013, with an option to renew for an additional 10-year period if
certain sales thresholds are met.

In January 1998, the Company consummated an exclusive license agreement (with certain territorial restrictions) with
an affiliate of Donna Karan International, Inc. to design, produce, market and sell men’s and women’s sportswear, jean-
swear and activewear products under the “DKNY" Jeans” and “DKNY* Active” marks and logos. Under the agreement, the
Company is obligated to pay a royalty equal to a percentage of net sales of the “DKNY- Jeans” and “DKNY* Active” prod-
ucts. The initial term of the license agreement runs through December 31, 2012, with an option to renew for an addi-
tonal 15-year period, if certain sales thresholds are met. Subject to the terms of the license agreement, aggregate
minimum rovalties for the initial 15 year term total $152 mullion. In December 1999, the Company consummated an
additional exclusive license agreement (with certain territorial restrictions) with an affiliate of Donna Karan International,
Inc. to design, produce, market and sell a new line of career and casual sportswear for the “better” market under the trade-
mark CITY DKNY*. Under the agreement, the Company is obligated to pay a royalty equal to a percentage of net sales of
the licensed products. The initial term of the license agreement runs through December 31, 2005, with an option to
renew for two additdonal 5-year periods if certain sales thresholds are met.

Certain of the above licenses are subject to minimum guarantees deemed not material.

MNOTE 4: Marketable Securities

In August 1999, the Company, in conjunction with the consummation of a license agreement with Kenneth Cole
Productions, Inc. {see Note 3 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements), purchased one million shares of Kenneth
Cole Productions, Inc. Class A stock at a price of $29 per share. In March 2000, a three-for-two stock split increased the
number of shares owned by the Company to 1.5 million shares. This amount, $29 million, was recorded at cost as a com-
ponent of other current assets as of December 30, 2000. Certain restrictions applicable to the Company’s stock owner-
ship expired on August 24, 2001. In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS™) No. 115,
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“Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securides,” as of December 29, 2001, the investment was
recorded as an available-for-sale marketable security at fair market value with unrealized losses net of taxes reported as a
component of accumulated other comprehensive loss.

The following is a summary of available-for-sale marketable securities at December 29,2001 and December 30, 2000:

Estimated
December 29, 2001 {in thousands) Cost Gains losses Fair Value
Equity securities $ 29,000 $ — $ 2,705 $ 26,295
Other holdings 8,599 — 1,901 6,698
Total $ 37,599 5 — $ 4,606 $ 32,993

|

Estimated
December 30, 2000 {in thousands} Cost Gains losses Fair Valve
Other holdings § 8,516 $ — $ 906 $ 7.610
Total $ 8,516 $ — $ 906 $ 7,610

For 2001, 2000 and 1999, gross realized gains on sales of available-for-sale securites totaled $0, $10,044,000 and

$1,793,000, respectively.

NOTE 5: Inventories
Inventories are summarized as follows:

In thousands December 29, 2001 December 30, 2000
Raw materials $ 29,649 $ 21,181
Work in process 7,061 6,233
Finished goods 451,213 452,431

$ 487,923 $ 479,845

NOTE ¢ Property and Equipment
Property and equipment consisted of the following:

In thousands December 29, 2001 December 30, 2000
Land and buildings $ 144,299 $ 133,342
Machinery and equipment 215,747 267,004
Furniture and fixtures 185,741 74,794
leasehold improvements 198,446 165,827
744,233 640,967

less: Accumuloted depreciation
and amoriization 392,232 343,543
$ 352,001 $ 297,424

Depreciation and amortization expense of property and equipment was $61.9 million, $51.7 million and $45.5 million

for fiscal years 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

NOTE 7: Accrued Expenses
Accrued expenses consisted of the following:

|n thousands December 29, 2001 December 30, 2000
Payrall and bonuses $ 37,406 $ 29,539
Taxes, other than taxes on income 17,865 16,009
Employee benefils 31,396 23,982
Advertising 14,790 15,505
Res!ruc?uring reserve 15,748 19,438
Other 82,567 46,807

$199,772 $ 151,280
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NOTE &: Income Taxes

The provisions for income taxes are as follows:

In thousands December 29, 2001 December 30, 2000 Jonwary 1, 2000
Current:
Federal $ 89,237 $ 78,39 § 81,512
Foreign 10,131 5,708 2,717
State & local 10,300 10,750 10,400
$ 110,168 $ 94,854 § 94,629
Deterred:
Federal $ 10,899 s 7,974 $ 13,005
Foreign (14,155) 158 117
State & tocal 1,120 849 1,393
§ 108,032 $ 103,835 $ 109,144

Liz Claiborne, Inc. and its U.S. subsidiaries file a consolidated federal income tax return. Deferred income tax benefits and
deferred income taxes represent the tax effects of revenues, costs and expenses which are recognized for tax purposes
in different periods from those used for financial statement purposes. The current income tax provisions exclude
$4,511,000 in 2001, 83,551,000 in 2000 and $1,031,000 in 1999 arising from the exercise of nongualified stock options.
These amounts have been credited to capital in excess of par value. In addition, the current tax provision does not reflect
the deferred tax Lability from our acquisition of Mexx of approximately $475,000 and the valuation allowance against the
net operating loss carryforwards acquired as part of the acquisition of Mexx.
The effective income tax rate differs from the statutory federal income tax rate as follows:

December 22, 2001 December 30, 2000 January 1, 2000
fFederal fax provision at
slatutory rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
State and local income taxes,
net of federal benefit 23 2.4 2.2
Oihernet (1.3) (1.4 (1.0
36.0% 36.0% 36.2%

The components of net deferred taxes arising from temporary differences as of December 29, 2001 and December 30,
2000 are as follows:

[DECEMBER 29, 2001] [DECEMBER 30, 2000 —‘
Deferred Deferred
Deferred Tox Deferred Tox
In thousands Tox Asset Liability Tax Assel Liability
Inventory valuation $ 10,236 $ — § 12,524 $ —

Unremitted earnings from foreign

subsidiaries — 16,419 — 16,419
Restructuring charge 10,593 — 9,958 -
Deferred compensalion — 10,207 — 9.405
Nondeductible accruals 14,867 — 7,734 —_
Unrealized investment losses [gains) 2,624 — (326) —
Net operating loss carryforwards 13,286 — — —~
Valuation allowance (5,829) — — —
Depreciation 2,582 — — (432)
Othernet (10,973) 10,688 (2.192) 5,627
$ 37,386 $ 37,314 $ 27,698 $ 31,019
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As of December 29, 2001, Mexx had net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $13,286,000 that begin to expire
in 2005 available to reduce future foreign taxable income. A deferred tax asset has been established, however, 2 valuation
allowance of $5,829,000 has reduced the deferred tax assets because it is more likely than not that certain of these assets
will not be used to reduce future tax payments. Management believes that the deferred tax benefits will be fully realized
through future taxable income and reversals of deferred tax Liabilities.

The Company has provided Federal income taxes on unremnitted earnings from its international subsidiaries that may
be remitted back to the United States. Federal income taxes were not provided on unremitted earnings expected to be
permanently reinvested internationally of approximately $4,000,000.

NOTE 9: Commitments, Contingencies and Other Matlers
The Company leases office, showroom, warehouse/distribution and retail space and computers and other equipment
under various noncancelable operating lease agreements which expire through 2023. Reental expense for 2001, 2000 and
1999 was approximately $100,748,000, $71,523,000 and $67,113,000, respectively. The above rental expense amounts
exclude associated costs such as real estate taxes and common area maintenance.

At December 29,2001, the minimum aggregate rental commitments are as follows:

IN THOUSANDS [N THOUSANDS

Fiscal Year Operating leases Fiscal Year Operating leases
2002 $ 97,569 2005 $ 73,321
2003 90,504 2006 63,437
2004 82,270 Therealter 296,780

Certain rental commitments have renewal options extending through the fiscal year 2031. Some of these renewals are
subject to adjustments in future periods. Many of the leases call for additional charges, some of which are based upon var-
ious escalations, and, in the case of retail leases, the gross sales of the individual stores above base levels.

At December 29, 2001 and December 30, 2000, the Company had entered into short-term commitments for the
purchase of raw materials and for the production of finished goods totaling approximately $506,328,000 and
$526,151,000, respectively.

In the normal course of business, the Company extends credit, on open account, to its retail customers, after a credit
analysis is performed based on a number of financial and other criteria. In the past, a number of corporate groups which
include certain of the Company’s largest department store customers were involved in highly leveraged financial transac-
tions and certain of these customers filed for protection under Chapter 11 of the Federal Bankruptcy Code.
Subsequently, certain customers have emerged from protection under Chapter 11. Three corporate groups of deparunent
store customers accounted for 17%, 13% and 11%, respectively, of wholesale net sales in 2001, 18%, 14% and 16%, respec-
tively, of wholesale net sales in 2000 and 17%, 16%, and 15%, respectively, of wholesale net sales in 1999. The Company
does not believe that this concentration of sales and credit risk represents a material risk of loss with respect to its financial
position as of December 29, 2001.

At December 29, 2001, approximately 14% of the Company’s work force was covered by collectve bargaining agree-
ments. One of these agreements currenty in effect expires in May 2005; all other agreements currendy in effect will
expire in May 2003.The Company considers its relations with its employees to be satisfactory and to date has not experi-
enced any interruption of operations due to labor disputes.

On May 22,2001, the Company entered into an off-balance sheet arrangement (synthetic lease) to acquire and con-
struct various land, building equipment and real property improvements associated with warehouse and distribution
faciliies in Ohio and Rhode Island. The lease terms are each five years, with up to four renewal periods of five years
each with the consent of the lessor. The operating lease arrangements are with a lessor who through a limited partner-
ship has contributed equity in excess of 3'/:% of the total value of the estimated aggregate cost to complete these facili-
tes, which is expected to be approximately $65 million. The leases include guarantees by the Company for a substantial
portion of the financing and options to purchase the facilities at original cost. The Company selected this financing
arrangement to take advantage of the favorable financing rates that it offered. The lessor financed the acquisition of the
facilides through equity funded by third-party financial institutions. The third-party financial institutions who hold the
equity are partners of the lessor. The Company’s transactions with the lessor are limited to the operating lease agree-
ments and the associated rent expense that will be included in Selling, General and Administrative Expense in the
Consolidated Statements of Income. The Company has not entered into any other off-balance sheet arrangements other
than normal operating leases.

The Company is a party to several pending legal proceedings and claims. Although the outcome of such actions can-
not be determined with certainty, management is of the opinion that the final outcome should not have a material
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adverse effect on the Company's results of operations or financial position (see Note 23 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements).

NOTE 10: Debt and lines of Credit

On May 22, 2001, the Company entered into a 350 million Euro (or $302.9 million based on the exchange rate in effect
on such date} 180-day unsecured credit facility (the “Bridge Loan”) from Citicorp North America, Inc. and Chase
Manhattan Bank. The Bridge Loan has two borrowing options, an “Alternative Base Rate” option and a Eurodollar rate
option, each as defined in the Bridge Loan. The proceeds of the Bridge Loan were primarily used to finance the
Company's acquisiion of Mexx on May 23, 2001 (see Note 2 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements).

On August 7,2001, the Company issued 350 million Euros (or $307.2 million based on the exchange rate in effect on
such date), of 6.625% notes due in 2006 (the “Eurobonds”). The Burcbonds are listed on the Luxembourg Stock
Exchange and received a credit rating of BBB from Standard & Poor’s and Baa2 from Moody’s Investor Services. The
net proceeds of the issuance were primarily used to repay the outstanding balance of the Bridge Loan, which expired on
November 16, 2001.

On November 15, 2001, the Company received a $500 million 364-day unsecured financing commitment under a
bank revolving credit facility, replacing the expiring $500 million, 364-day unsecured credit facility. This bank facility, as
well as the Company’s $250 million bank facility that matures in November 2003 (collectively, the “Agreement”) may be
either drawn upon or used as a liquidity facility to support the issuance of A2/P2 rated commercial paper. Repayment of
the 364-day facility can be extended for one year after the maturity date. The Agreement has two borrowing options, an
“Alternative Base Rate” option, as defined in the Agreement, and a Eurodollar rate option with a spread based on the
Company's long-term credit raung.

The Agreement contains certain customary covenants, including financial covenants requiring the Company to main-
tain specified debt leverage and fixed charge coverage ratios, and covenants restricting the Company’s ability to, among
other things, incur indebtedness, grant liens, make investments and acquisitions, and sell assets. The Company believes it is
in compliance with such covenants.

The Agreement may be directly drawn upon, or used, to support the Company’s $750 million commercial paper pro-
gram, which is used from time to time to fund working capital and other general corporate requirements. At December
29, 2001, approximately $77.7 million was outstanding under the commercial paper program, with a weighted average
interest rate of 3.1%.The carrying amount of the Company’s borrowings under the conunercial paper program approxi-
mate fair value because the interest rates are based on floating rates, which are determined by prevailing market rates. The
commercial paper is classified as long-term debt as of December 29, 2001 as it is the Company’s intent and ability to refi-
nance such obligations on a long-term basis.

As of December 29, 2001, the Company had lines of credit aggregating $410 million, which were primarily available to
cover trade letters of credit. At December 29, 2001 and December 30, 2000, the Company had letters of credit
of $228 million and $271 million, respectively. These letters of credit, which have terms ranging from one to ten
months, primarily collateralize the Company’s obligations to third parties for the purchase of inventory. The fair value of
these letters of credit approximates contract values.

NOTE 11: Derivotive Instruments and Foreign Currency Risk Management Programs

As of December 31, 2000, the Company adopted SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activides” and SFAS No. 138, “Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Activides — an
Amendment of FASB Statement No. 133, which require that every derivative instrument (including certain derivative
instruments imbedded in other contracts) be recorded in the balance sheet as either an asset or liability measured at its fair
value. The staternent also requires that changes in the derivative’s fair value be recognized currently in earnings in either
income (loss) from continuing operations or accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), depending on the timing
and designated purpose of the derivative. The impact on the Company’s financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows, upon the adoption of these pronouncements, was immaterial.

The Company uses foreign currency forward contracts and collars for the specific purpose of hedging the exposure to
variability in expected future cash flows associated with inventory purchases and sales collections from transactions associ-
ated primarily with our Canadian and European entities. These instruments are designated as cash flow hedges and, in
accordance with SFAS Nos. 133 and 138, any unrealized gains or losses are included in accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss), net of related tax effects, with the corresponding asset or liability recorded in the balance sheet. The ineffec-
tive portion of the cash flow hedge, if any, is recognized in current-period earnings. Other comprehensive income (loss) is
reclassified to current-period earnings when the hedged transaction affects earnings. At December 29, 2001, the
Company had entered into foreign currency collars with an net notional amount of $55 million with maturity dates in
May 2002 and August 2002.
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Occasionally, the Company purchases short-term foreign currency contracts and options outside of the cash flow hedg-
ing program to neutralize month-end balance sheet exposures. These derivative instruments do not qualify as cash flow
hedges under SFAS Nos. 133 and 138 and are recorded at fair value with all gains or losses, which have not been signifi-
cant, recognized in current period earnings immediately.

As of December 29, 2001, the Company had forward contracts maturing through April 2002 to sell 7.0 million
Canadian dollars, 0.5 million British pounds sterling, and 32.5 million European Euros. The aggregate U.S. dollar value of
the foreign exchange contracts was approximately $34.6 million at year end 2001, as compared with approximately $12.6
million at year end 2000. Unrealized gains and losses for outstanding foreign exchange forward contracts were not mate-
rial at December 29, 2001 and December 30, 2000.

NOTE 12: Restructuring Charges

In December 2001, the Company recorded a net restructuring charge of $15.1 million (pretax), representing a charge of
$19.0 million, which consisted of approximately $4.6 million for the closure of seven Specialty Retail stores, due to a shift
to a vertical format for one of our brands which requires positioning in different locations and the elimination of our
large “world” store concept, and five Qutlet stores, due to the elimination of two of our branded store formats; $3.5 million
for the closure of four of our division offices; $3.3 million associated with the strategic closure of two specific facilities;
and $7.6 million in severance related costs associated with the elimination of approximately 600 jobs, offset by the $3.9
million deemed no longer necessary of the Company’s previous restructuring liability originally recorded in December
2000. The remaining balance of the restructuring liability as of December 29, 2001 was $15.7 million. The Company
expects that these activities will be substantially complete by December 2002.

In September 2000, the Company recorded a net restructuring charge of $5.4 million (pretax), representing a charge of
$6.5 million, principally to cover the closure of eight under-performing Specialty Retail stores in formats that no longer
fit into our retail strategy, the closure of one of our recently acquired divisional offices, and severance related costs, offset
by the $1.1 million deemed no longer necessary of the Company’s previous restructuring lability originally recorded in
December 1998.

In December 2000, the Company recorded a restructuring charge of $15.6 million (pretax) to further maximize busi-
ness segment synergies. This charge consisted of $10.6 million for operating and administrative costs associated with the
eliminadon of nearly 270 jobs and $5.0 million for real estate consclidations. Significant items included in the charge
are estimated contract termination costs, severance and related benefits for staff reductions, estimated occupancy costs
and asset writedowns. Asset writedowns of $2.4 million consist principally of showrooms and administrative offices
deemed no longer necessary in our Wholesale Apparel segment. These restructuring activities are substantially complete
as of December 29, 2001. The fiscal 2000 restructuring charges reduced net income by $13.5 million, or $0.13 per
common share.

During the 1999 fiscal year, $2.7 million of the Company’s previous restructuring liability originally recorded in
December 1998 was deemed to be no longer necessary. This amount was taken as a reduction to the restructuring
charge through earnings and was offset with a restructuring reserve of an equal amount to recognize the antcipated exit
cost associated with the closure of seven additional under-performing retail stores.

A summary of the changes in the restructuring reserves is as follows:

Estimated

Operating Qccupaney

Store and Costs and

Closure  Administrative Asset Write
In millions Costs Exit Costs Downs Total
ORIGINAL RESERVE $ 144 3126 3 — $27.0
1999 spending (11.2) (10.7) — (21.9)
1999 reserve reduction {0.8) (1.9) — (2.7)
1999 exit costs charge 27 — — 27
BALANCE AT JANUARY 1, 2000 $ 51 8 — $ — $ 5.1
2000 reserve 5.4 118 5.0 222
2000 spending 3.9) (0.4) 2.4) (6.7)
2000 reserve reduction (1.1) — —_ (1.1)
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 30, 2000 $ 55 3114 $26 $19.5
2001 reserve 456 7.6 6.8 16.0
2001 spending [e3)) ©.7 7. (18.9)
2001 reserve reduction (2.4) (1.5) — (3.9)
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 29, 2001 $ 56 5 78 $23 $157
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NOTE 13: Other (Expensef Income - Net
Other (expense) income - net consists of the following:

In thousands December 29, 2001 December 30, 2000 Jonuary 1, 2000
Investment gain $8 — $ 8,760 $ —
Minority interest (3,645) {2,218) {1,402)
Other 134 116 446

$(3,511) $6,658 3 (956)

NOTE 14 Stock Plans

The Company applies Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and
related [nterpretations in accounting for its stock-based compensation plans, which are described below. Accordingly, no
compensation cost has been recognized for its fixed stock opdon grants. Had compensation costs for the Company’s stock
option grants been determined based on the fair value at the grant dates for awards under these plans in accordance with
SFAS No. 123 “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” the Company’s net income and earnings per share would
have been reduced to the pro forma amounts as follows:

In thousands except for
per cammon share dota Deacember 29, 2001 December 30, 2000 Janvary 1, 2000
NET INCOME:
As reported $ 192,057 $ 184,595 $ 192,442
Pio forma $ 178,721 $ 175,281 $ 185,814
BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE:
As reported 3 185 $ 173 $ 156
Pro torma s 172 $ 164 3 151
DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE:
As reparted s 1.8 5 172 $ 156
Pro torma 5 170 $ 163 $ 151

For this purpose, the fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes opdon-
pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions used for grants in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively: div~
idend yield of 0.9%, 1.1% and 1.3%, expected volatility of 46%, 40% and 37%, risk free interest rates of 4.4%, 5.0% and
5.3%, and expected lives of five years for all periods.

In March 1992 and March 2000, the Company adopted the “1992 Plan” and “2000 Plan,” respectively, under which
nonqualified options to acquire shares of common stock may be granted to officers, other key employees and directors
selected by the plans’ administrative committee (“‘the committee”). Payment by option holders upon exercise of an
option may be made in cash or, with the consent of the committee, by delivering previously acquired shares of Company
common stock. Stock appreciation rights may be granted in connection with all or any part of any optdon granted under
the plans, and may also be granted without a grant of a stock option. The grantee of a stock appreciation right has the
right, with the consent of the committee, to receive either in cash or in shares of common stock, an amount equal to the
appreciation in the fair market value of the covered shares from the date of grant to the date of exercise. Options and
rights are exercisable over a period of time designated by the committee and are subject to such other terms and condi-
tons as the committee determines. Vesting schedules will be accelerated upon merger of the Company or the happening
of certain other change of control events. Options and rights may not be transferred during the lifetime of a holder.

Awards under the 2000 Plan may also be made in the form of incentive stock options, dividend equivalent rights,
restricted stock, unrestricted stock and performance shares. Exercise prices for awards under the 2000 Plan are determined

by the committee; to date, all stock options have been granted at an exercise price not less than the quoted market value
of the underlying shares on the date of grant.

The 2000 Plan provides for the issuance of up to 10,000,000 shares of common stock with respect to options, stock
appreciation rights and other awards granted under the 2000 Plan. At December 29, 2001, there were available for future
grant 5,509,984 shares under the 2000 Plan. The 2000 Plan expires in 2010. Upon shareholder approval of the 2000 Plan
in May 2000, the Company ceased issuing grants under the 1992 Plan; awards made thereunder prior to its termination
rernain in effect in accordance with their terms.
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Since January 1990, the Company has delivered treasury shares upon the exercise of stock options. The difference
between the cost of the weasury shares, on a first-in, first-out basis, and the exercise price of the options has been reflected
in retained earnings.

Changes in common shares under option for the three fiscal years in the period ended December 29,2001 are summa-
rized as follows:

Weighied Weighted Weighied

Average Average Average

Shares Exercise Price Shores Exercise Price Shares  Exercise Price

Beginning of year 7,228,550 £18.23 5,668,942 $17.38 4,681,188 $17.73

Granted 3,851,000 22.08 3,762,400 18.47 2,584,400 16.41

Exercised (2,363,076) 18.20 (1,318,188) 14.57 (438,612) 11.81

Cancelled (1,131,992) 18.90 (884,604) 19.28 (1,158,034) 18.79

End of year 7,584,482 $20.10 7,228,550 31823 5,668,942 $17.38

Exercisable ot end of year 1,179,594 $18.73 1,711,674 $18.46 1,842,690 $16.32

Weighted average fair

value of options granted

during the year $ 9.49 $7.21 $ 6.11

The following table summarizes information about options outstanding at December 29, 2001:

[OPTIONS OUTSTANDING] [OPTIONS EXERCISABLE |
Weighted Average

Quislanding ot Remaining  Weighted Average Exercisoble ot Weighted Average

Range of Exercise Prices Dec. 2%, 2001 Conlractual tife Exercise Price Dec. 29, 2001 Exercise Price
$ 8.50-$17.50 1,005,354 7.2 years $16.04 270,454 $15.37
17.51 - 22.50 6,099,928 8.4 years 20.63 881,190 19.57
2251 - 3550 479,200 8.8 years 27.67 27,950 24.76
$ 8.50-3835.50 7,584,482 8.2 years $20.47 1,179,594 $18.73

On January 24, 2002, nonqualified options to acquire approximately 3,300,000 shares of common stock were granted to
officers and other key employees with an exercise price of $25.94.

In January 2001 and May 2001, the committee authorized the grant of 84,966 shares of restricted stock issued under
the 2000 Plan; these shares are subject to restrictions on transfer and risk of forfeiture until earned by continued service
and vest as follows: 20% on each of the third, fourth and fifth grant date anniversary, and the remaining 40% on the sixth
grant date anniversary, with acceleration of vesting upon the achievement of certain financial and non-financial goals. The
unearned compensation is being amortized over a period equal to the anticipated vesting period.

In January 2001, the committee authorized the grant of 1,034,000 shares of common stock to a group of key execu-
tives. As of December 29,2001, 736,000 of these shares remained outstanding. These shares are subject to restrictons on
transfer and subject to risk of forfeiture until earned by continued employment. The restrictions expire in January 2007.
The expiration of restricdions may be accelerated if the total return on the Company’s common stock exceeds that of a
predetermined group of competitors or upon the occurrence of certain other events. The unearned compensation is
being amortized over a period equal to the anticipated vesting period.

In 1998, the committee granted 733,300 shares of common stock to a group of key executives. As of December 29,
2001, 68,464 of these shares remained outstanding. These shares are subject to restrictions on transfer and subject to risk
of forfeiture until earned by continued employment. The restrictions expire on July 6, 2007. Given that the total return
on the Company’s common stock exceeded that of a predetermined group of competitors for the period of January 1,
1998 through March 1, 2001, the expiration of the restrictions on 80% of such shares was accelerated as of March 1,
2001. During the first quarter of 2001, the Company recorded a charge to operating income of approximately $5 million
as compensation expense to reflect such accelerations. The shares that did not vest on an accelerated basis remain
restricted; the expiration of restrictions may be accelerated if the total return of the Company’s common stock exceeds
that of a predetermined group of competitors or upon the occurrence of certain other events. The unearned compensa-
tion on such unvested shares is being amortized over a period equal to the anticipated vesting period.

The unearned compensation related to all restricted stock grants as of December 29, 2001, December 30, 2000, and
January 1, 1999 is $16,704,000, $7,635,000, and $9,097,000, respectively, and is included in retained earnings.
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The Company’s outside directors’ stock ownership plan provides non-employee directors, as part of their annual
retainer, shares of common stock with a value of $15,000 on the first business day of each fiscal year. The shares so issued
are nontransferable for a period of three years following the grant date, subject to certain exceptons. In 2001, 63,000
shares of common stock were issued under this plan. This plan also provides each non-employee director a grant of
options to purchase 2,000 shares of common stock on the first business day of each fiscal year. Not more than one half of
one percent (0.50%) of the shares of common stock outstanding fomn time to time may be issued under the plan, which
will expire in ten years. Additionally, effective July 2000, each non-employee director is enttled to receive on the first
business day of each fiscal year a grant of options to purchase 4,000 shares under the 2000 Plan.

NOTE 15: Profit-sharing Retirement, Savings and Deferred Compensation Plans

The Company maintains a qualified defined conuibution plan (the “401(k)/Profit Sharing Plan”) for eligible U.S.
employees of the Company and adopting affiliates, which has two component parts: a cash or deferred arrangement
under section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code and a profit sharing portion. To be eligible to participate in either
portion of the 401(k)/Profit Sharing Plan, employees must be at least age 21 and not covered by a collective bargaining
agreement; there are additional eligibility and vesting rules for each of the 401(k)/Profit Sharing Plan components. As of
January 1, 2002, full-time employees may begin to make pre-tax contributions and to receive employer matching contri-
butions to the 401(k) portion of the 401(k)/Profit Sharing Plan after six months of employment with the Company,
while part-time employees must complete a 12-month period in which they are credited with 1000 hours of service.
The 1000-hour rule applies to all eligible employees for purposes of entering the profit sharing portion of the
401(k)/Profit Sharing Plan; in addition, a participant generally must be credited with 1000 hours of service during, and
be employed by the Company or one of its affiliates on the last day of, the calendar year to share in the profit sharing
contribution for that year.

Company matching contributions vest (i.e., become nonforfeitable) on a schedule of 20% for the first two years of
elapsed service with the Company and its affiliates and 20% for each year of service thereafter. Profit sharing contribu-
tions, if any, are made annually at the discretion of the Board of Directors, and vest 100% after five years of elapsed service
(except for pre-1997 participants who were grandfathered under the previous 2-6 year graded schedule).

Under the 401(k) portion of the 401(k)/Profit Sharing Plan, participants may, subject to applicable IRS limita-
tions, contribute from 1% to 15% of their salaries on a pretax basis; the 401(k)/Profit Sharing Plan provides for
automatic enrollment (at a contribution rate of 3%) when an eligible employee first becomes entitled to participate
in the 401(k) portion of the 401(k)/Profit Sharing Plan, unless the employee elects otherwise. Participants’ pretax
contributions are matched at the rate of $.50 for each dollar contributed by the participant that does not exceed 6%
of eligible compensation.

The Company’s aggregate 401(k)/Profit Sharing Plan contribution expense for 2001, 2000 and 1999, which is
included in selling, general and administrative expenses, was $7,731,000, $6,888,000 and $6,515,000, respectively.

The Company has a supplemental retirement plan for certain highly compensated employees whose benefits under the
401(k)/Profit Sharing Plan are expected to be constrained by the operation of certain Internal Revenue Code limita-
tions. The supplemental plan provides a benefit equal to the difference between the contribution that would be made for
an executive under the tax-qualified plan absent such limitations and the actual contribution under that plan. The supple-
mental plan also allows participants to defer up to 15% of their base salary and up to 100% of their annual bonus.
Supplemental benefits attributable to participant deferrals are fully vested at all times and the balance of a participant’s
benefits vests on the same basis as the matching contribution under the 401(k)/Profit Sharing Plan. This supplemental
plan 15 not funded. As of January 1, 2002, the Company established an irrevocable “rabbi” wust to which the Company
plans to make contributions to provide a source of funds to assist in meeting its obligations under the plan.
The principal of the trust, and earnings thereon, are to be used exclusively for the participants under the plan, subject to
the claims of the Company’s general creditors. The Company’s expenses (recoveries) related to the plan, which are
included in selling, general and administrative expenses, were $13,000, ($224,000) and $2,223,000 in 2001, 2000 and
1999, respectively.

The Company has established an unfunded deferred compensation arrangement for a senior executive which accrues
over an eight vear period as of the first day of each fiscal year beginning in 1996, based on an amount equal to 15% of the
sum of the senjor executive’s base salary and bonus. The accrued amount plus earnings will become fully vested on
Jenuary 1, 2005, provided the senior executive is the Chairman of the Board and Chief Execudve Officer of the
Company on such date. This arrangement also provides for the deferral of an amount equal to the portion of the execu-
tive’s base salary that exceeds $1 million. The deferred amount plus earnings will be fully vested at all times.

60 liz Claiborne Inc. and Subsidiaries




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 16: Stockholder Rights Plan

In December 1998, the Company adopted a new Stockholder Rights Plan to replace the then expiring plan originally
adopted in December 1988. Under the new Plan, one preferred stock purchase right is attached to each share of com-
mon stock outstanding. The rights are nominally exercisable under certain circumstances, to buy 1/100 share of a newly
created Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock for $150. If any person or group (referred to as an “Acquiring
Person”) becomes the benefictal owner of 15% or more of the Company’s commeon stock (20% or more in the case of
certain acquisitions by institational investors), each right, other than rights held by the Acquiring Person which become
void, will become exercisable for common stock having a market value of twice the exercise price of the right. If anyone
becomes an Acquiring Person and afterwards the Company or 50% or more of its assets is acquired in a merger, sale or
other business combination, each right (other than voided rights) will become exercisable for common stock of the
acquirer having a market value of twice the exercise price of the right. The rights, which expire on December 21, 2008
and do not have voting rights, may be amended by the Company’s Board of Directors and redeemed by the Company at
$0.01 per right at any time before any person or group becomes an Acquiring Person.

NOTE V7: Earnings per Common Share
The following is an analysis of the differences between basic and diluted earnings per common share in accordance
with SFAS No. 128 “Earnings per Share”’

FISCALYEAR ENDED

In thousands December 29, 2001 December 30, 2000 Jonuary 1, 2000
Net income: $ 192,057 § 184,595 $ 192,442
Weighted average common shares outstanding 103,994 106,813 123,047
Effect of dilutive securities:
Stock options and restricted stock grants 1,057 682 378
Put warrants — — 14

Weighted average common shares

and common share equivalents 105,051 107,495 123,439

NOTE 18: Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows Supplementary Disclosures

During fiscal 2001, 2000. and 1999, the Company made income tax payments of $83,851,000, $94,742,000, and
$89,374,000, respectively. The Company made interest payments of $15,093,000, $20,438,000, and $2,186,000 in 2001,
2000, and 1999, respectively. Other non-cash investing activities in 1999 included a future payment of $15.0 million asso-
ciated with the Lucky Brand Dungarees, Inc. acquisition and $3.5 million contingent payment for the Laundry acquisi-
tion (see Note 2 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Staterments).

NOQTE 19: Segmenl Reporting

The Company has three segments: Wholesale Apparel, Wholesale Non-Apparel and Retail. The Wholesale Apparel seg-
ment consists of women’s and men’s apparel designed and marketed under various trademarks owned or licensed by the
Company. The Wholesale Non-Apparel segment consists of accessories, jewelry and cosmetics designed and marketed
under certain of those and other trademarks. The Retail segment operates specialty retail and outlet stores that sell these
apparel and non-apparel products to the public.

The Company evaluates performance and allocates resources based on operating profits or losses. The accounting poli-
cies of the reportable segments are the same as those described in the summary of significant accounting policies.
Intersegment sales are recorded at cost. There is no intercompany profit or loss on intersegment sales, however, the whole-
sale segments are credited with their proportionate share of the operating profit generated by the Retail segment, The
profit credited to the wholesale segments from the Retail segment is eliminated in consolidation.

The Company’s segments are business units that offer either different products or distribute similar products through
different distribution channels. The segments are each managed separately because they either manufacture and distribute
distinct products with different production processes or distribute similar products through different distribution channels.
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DECEMBER 29, 2001

Wholesale Wholesale Corporate/
In thousands Apporel Nor-Apparel Retail Efiminations Totals
Revenues from external customers § 2,345,925 § 473,562 8615714 $ 13321 $ 3,448,522
Intercompany soles 190,310 22,518 — : {212,828) —
Depveciorion and amortization expense 70,318 6,795 20,476 3,902 101,491
Segment operating profit (loss) 288,865 46,150 70,263 (73,561) 331,717
Segment assets 1,512,923 166,721 358,677 189,339 2,227,660
Expenditures for long-lived assets 143,941 2,180 126,484 — 272,605

DECEMBER 30, 2000

Wholesale Wholesale Corporats/
In thousands Apparel Nan-Apparet Retail Eliminations Totals
Revenues trom external customers $ 2,203,358 $ 399,710 $ 486,547 $ 14526 $ 3,104,141
Intercompany sales 170,799 23,252 — (194,051} —
Depreciorion and amortization expense 57,448 5,497 11,339 2,749 77,033
Segment operating profir {loss) 287,03% 33,561 62,786 (79,697) 303,689
Segment assets 1,295,046 161,768 151,575 193,928 1,802,317
Expenditures for long-lived assels 70,762 42,288 16,010 — 129,060

JANUARY 1, 2000

Wholesale Wholesale Corporate/
In thousands Apparel Non-Apparel Retail Eliminations Tolals
Revenues from external customers $ 2,032,205 $ 320,338 $ 445212 $ 8,793 $ 2,806,548
Intercompany sales 163,879 20,813 — (184,652) —
Deprec[orion and amortization expense 47,024 4,130 10,608 6,074 67,836
Segment operating pfoﬁt lloss} 276,732 25,887 55,377 (58,243) 299,753
Segmem assets 1,311,090 86,549 121,613 200,121 1,719,373
Expenditures for long-lived ossets 243,786 1,615 31,851 — 277,252

In the “Corporate/Eliminations” column of each period presented, the segment assets consists primarily of corporate
buildings, machinery and equipment and licenses and trademarks purchased by the Company. The segment operating
loss consists primarily of the elimination of the profit transfer from the Retail segment to the wholesale segments, and
$15,050,000 and $21,041,000 of restructuring charges in 2001 and 2000, respectively.

[DECEMBER 29,2001 | [DECEMBER 3¢, 2000] [JANUARY 1.2000]

In thousands Domestic International Domestic International Domestic International
Revenues from external

customers $ 3,031,318 § 417,204 $ 2,984,927 $119214 §2,701,272 $ 105,276
Depreciation and

omortization expense 87,498 13,993 74,907 2,126 66,771 1,065
Segment operating profit 290,357 41,360 295,276 8,413 294,936 4,817
Segment assets 1,746,660 481,000 1,748,935 53,382 1,662,230 57,143
Expenditures for long-lived

assels 44,070 228,535 127,063 1,997 276,171 1,081
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A reconciliation to adjust segment assets to consolidated assets follows:

tn thousands December 29, 2001 December 30, 2000 January 1, 2000
Total segment assets $ 2,227,660 $ 1,802,317 $1,719,373
Intercompany receivables (18,200) (12,859) (24,640)
Investments in wholly-owned subsidiaries (298,128) (290,869) (292,249)
Other 39,923 13,570 9,317
Total consolidated assets $ 1,951,255 $ 1,512,159 $ 1,411,801

NOTE 20: Other Comprehensive Income
Comprehensive income is comprised of net income, the effects of foreign currency translation and changes in unrealized
gains and losses on securides.

In thousands December 29, 2001 December 30, 2000 January 1, 2000
Comprehensive income, net of tax:
Net income $ 192,057 $ 184,595 $ 192,442
Foreign currency translation 4,928 (3,625) (431)
[Losses) on cash flow hedging derivatives (2509 — —
Changes in unreslized losses on securities (2,368) (768) (1
Comprehensive income, net of tax: $194,367 $ 180,202 $ 191,500

The following table contains the components of the adjustment to unrealized (losses) on available for sale securities
included in the Consolidated Statements of Retained Earnings, Comprehensive Income and Changes in Capital Accounts.

tn thousands December 29, 2001 December 30, 2000 Jonuery 1, 2000
Unrealized {loss} on available for sale securities, net of tox:
Unrealized holding (loss) $(2,368) $(1,212) $ (166)
Reclassification adjustment — 444 55
Net unrealized [toss) $(2,368) $ (768) $(111)

NOTE 21: Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In November 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) reached a
consensus on fssue No. 01-9 (formerly EITF Issue 00-25), “Accounting for Consideration Given to a Customer or a
Reseller of the Vendor’s Products.” This issue addresses the recognition, measurement and income statement classification
of consideration from a vendor to a customer in connection with the customer’s purchase or promotion of the vendor’s
products. This consensus is expected to only impact revenue and expense classificadons and not change reported net
income. In accordance with the consensus reached, the Company will adopt the required accounting beginning December
30, 2001, the first day of fiscal year 2002. The Company believes that the impact of this required accounting will not have a
material impact on the revenue and expense classifications in the Company's Consolidated Statements of Income.

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations” and SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets” SFAS No. 141 requires that all business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001 are to be accounted
for using the purchase method and specifies the criteria for the recognition and measurement of goodwill and other
intangible assets acquired in a business combination. SFAS No. 142 requires that goodwill and intangible assets with indef-
inite useful lives are to no longer be amortized but rather be tested at least annually for impairment. SFAS No. 142 also
requires that intangible assets with definite useful lives will continue to be amortized over their respective useful lives to
their estimated residual values, and reviewed for impairment in accordance with SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” The Company adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 141 immediately and
SFAS No. 142 effective December 30, 2001.The amortization expense of goodwill and intangibles for the twelve months
ended December 29, 2001 totaled $21.3 million.
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In October 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, *Accounting for Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” SFAS
No. 144 addresses financial accounting and reporting for the impairment or disposal of long-lived assets. The Statement
also extends the reporting requirements to report separately as discontinued operations, components of an entity that have
either been disposed of or classified as held for sale. The Company has adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 144 effective
December 30, 2001 and such adoption did not have a significant effect on its financial statements.

NOTE 22: Related Party Transactions

The law firm, Kramer Levin Naftalis & Frankel LLP, of which Kenneth P. Kopelman (a Director of the Company) is a
partner, provided legal services to the Company during 2001, 2000 and 1999, The Company paid legal fees to that firm
in the amounts of $872,000, $1.55 million and $1.61 million, respectively, for those services. It is anticipated that such
firm will continue to provide such services in 2002.

During fiscal years 2001, 2000 and 1999 the Company and certain of its contractors purchased, in the ordinary course
of their business for use in the manufacture of Company products, fabric from certain European textile mills for which
Gordon Textiles International, Led. (“GTIL”) acts as sales agent in the United States. ]. James Gordon, a Director of the
Company, is the sole shareholder of GTIL. Such fabric purchases during each year aggregated approximately $1.5 million,
$3.0 million and $4.0 million, respectively. GTIL received commnissions from its client mills, at customary industry rates, in
respect to such sales aggregating to $79,000, $150,000 and $207,000, respectively.

During 2001, Liz Claiborne Inc. leased a certain office facility from Amex Property B.V. (“Amex”), a company whose
principal owner is Rattan Chadha, President and Chief Executive Officer of Mexx, under a 20 year lease agreement. The
space houses the principal headquarters of Mexx in Voorschoten, Netherlands. The rental paid to Amex for the period of
May 23, 2001 through December 29, 2001 was 365,000 Euros (or $324,000 based on the average exchange rate in effect
during such period).

The transactions between the Company and these related parties were effected on an arm’s-length basis, with services
provided at fair market value. The Company believes that such transactions were effected on terms no less favorable to
the Company than those that would have been realized in transactions with other entities.

NOTE 23: legal Proceedings

In January 1999, two actions were filed in California naming as defendants more than a dozen United States-based
apparel companies that source garments from Saipan (Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands) and a large
number of Saipan-based garment factories. The actions assert that the Saipan factories engage in unlawful practices relat-
ing to the recruitment and employment of foreign workers and that the apparel companies, by virtue of their alleged rela-
tionships with the factories, have violated various federal and state laws. One action, filed in California Superior Court in
San Francisco by a union and three public interest groups, alleges unfair competition and false advertising (the “State
Court Action”). The State Court Action seeks equitable relief, unspecified amounts for restitution and disgorgement of
profits, interest and an award of attorney’s fees. The second, filed in Federal Court for the Central District of California
and later transferred to the District of Hawaii, and, in Spring 2001, to the United States District Court for the District of
the Northern Mariana Islands, is brought on behalf of a purported class consisting of the Saipan factory workers (the
“Federal Action”). The Federal Action alleges claims under the ¢ivil RICO statute and the Alien Tort Claims Act, premised
on supposed violations of the federal anti-peonage and indentured servitude statutes, as well as other violations of Saipan
and international law, and seeks equitable relief and unspecified damages, including treble and punitive damages, interest
and an award of attorney’s fees. A third action, brought in Federal Court in Saipan solely against the garment factory
defendants on behalf of a putative class of their workers, alleges violations of federal and Saipanese wage and employment
laws. The Company sources products in Saipan but was not named as a defendant in the actions. The Company and cer-
tain other apparel companies not named as defendants were advised in writing, however, that they would be added as par-
ties if a consensual resolution of the complaint claims could not be reached. In the wake of that notice, which was
accompanied by a draft complaint, the Company entered into settlement negotiations and subsequently entered into an
agreement to settle all claims that were or could have been asserted in the Federal or State Court Action. To date, eight-
een other apparel companies have also settled these claims. As part of the setdement, the Company has since been named
as a defendant, along with certain other settling apparel companies, in a Federal Court action styled Doe I, et al. v.
Brylane, L.P et al. (the “Brylane Action”), initially brought in the United States District Court for the District of Hawaii,
that mirror portions of the larger State and Federal Actions but does not include RICO and certain of the other claims
alleged in those Actions. The newly filed action against the Company will remain inactve unless the settlement is not
finally approved by the Federal Court. The agreements concluded by the Company and other retailers are subject to fed-
eral court approval, which has been delayed by virtue of the Hawaii District Court’s June 23, 2000 decision to transfer the
Federal Action to Saipan, Plaintiffs have petitioned the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals for a Writ of Mandamus reversing
that ruling. On March 22, 2001 the Court of Appeals denied Plaintiffs pecition, and the Federal Action and the Brylane
Action have been transferred to Saipan. The court in Saipan held a hearing on February 14, 2002 on Phinuffs’ motions to
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certify the proposed class and to preliminarily approve the settlement, but reserved decisions on both motions. Under the
terms of the setdement agreement, if the settlement does not receive final federal court approval, the Company will be
entitled to a refund of the entire settlement amount except for funds of up to $10,000 spent on costs of notice. Because
the litigation is at a preliminary stage, with virtually no merits discovery having taken place, if the settlement is not exe-
cuted or is not finally approved by the federal court, we cannot at this juncture determine the likelihood of a favorable or
unfavorable outcome or the magnitude of the latter if it were to occur. Although the outcome of any such litigation can-~
not be determined with certainty, management is of the opinion that the final outcome should not have a material
adverse effect on the Company's financial positon or results of operations.

NOTE 24: Unaudited Quarterly Results
Unaudited quarterly financial information for 2001 and 2000 is set forth in the table below:

In thousands except for

per common share data 2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000 2001 2000
Net sales $ 826,650 3§ 809,459 § 727,035 $ 661,667 § 1,008,356 § 879,025 § 386,481 $ 753,990
Gross p(ofil 322,862 302,874 308,23% 267,754 423,329 350,655 372,820 312,589
Net income 45,500 46,4927 32,467 31,452 72,611 67,0727 41,479 39,579%
Basic earnings

per share $ 44 3 4208 313 29 8 70 % 64% ¢ 400§ .38
Diluted earnings

per share $ 44 % 420§ 31 8 29 s 69§ 63§ 399§ .38@
Dividends paid per

common share 3 06 8 06§ 06 8 06 8 06 8 068 06 8 .06

"includes the after tax effect of o special investment gain of $2,122 ($3,316 pretox) or $.02 per share

™ Includes the after tax effect of o special invesiment gain of $3,484 ($5,444 pretox) or $.03 per share and the after tax
effect of a resiructuring charge of $3,457 ($5,402 pretax) or $.03 per common share.

ncludes the after tax effect of o restructuring charge of $9,632 {$135,050 pretax} or $.09 per share.

“Includes the afier tax effect of a restruciuring charge of $10,009 {$15,639 pretox) or $.10 per share.

Commeon Stock Dota
The Company’s common stock trades on the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”) under the symbol LIZ. The table

below sets forth the high and low closing sale prices of the common stock (based on the NYSE composite tape) for the
periods indicated.

Year Calendar Period High Low Year Colendar Period High low
2001 1st Quarter $25.45 $20.88 2000 1st Quarter $23.59 $15.63
2nd Quarter 26.34 21.88 2nd Quarter 23.44 17.47
3rd Quarter 27.14 18.85 3rd Quarter 22.56 17.72
4th Quarter 25.84 18.63 3rd Quarter 22.53 17.53

On March 12, 2002, the closing price of the Company’s common stock was $28.30. As of March 12, 2002 the approxi-
mate number of record holders of common stock was 7,232.
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[BOARD OF DIRECTORS]

Bernard W. Aronson '
Chairman, ACON Investments LLC

Paul R. Charron
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